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LG CORP. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT SOF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

Korean won
December 31, December 31,
2018 2017
(In millions)
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 5, 6, 31 and 34) 1,054,293 1,309,949
Financial institution deposits (Notes 5, 31 and 34) 348,699 438,214
Current derivative assets (Notes 5 and 34) 1,241 1,798
Trade receivablesiet (Notes 5, 7, 30 and 34) 2,755,238 3,023,304
Other receivables, net (Notes 5, 7, 30 and 34) 25,118 83,816
Current tax assets 6,957 6,703
Current other assets (Notes 9 and 18) 305,391 284,668
Inventories, net (Note 8) 116,148 109,989
Asses held for sal¢Note 38) - 109,368
Total currentassets 4,613,085 5,367,809
NON-CURRENT ASSETS:
Availablefor-s a | e AAFSO finan
(Notes 5 and 34) ( ) 117,217 121,817
Non-current trade receivables, net
(Notes 5, 7, 30 and 34) 25,751 25,734
Non-current other receivables, net
(Notes 5, 7, 30, 31 and 34) 44,763 17
Investments in associates and joint ventures (Note 1: 14,478,228 12,753,226
Deferred tax assets, net (Note 28) 152,950 123,075
Non-current other assets (No9) 9,419 8,541
Property, plant and equipment, net (Note 10) 1,877,748 1,911,540
Investment property, net (Note 11) 1,416,911 1,241,544
Intangible assets (Note 12) 99,839 94,394
Total nonrcurrent assets 18,222,826 16,279,888
TOTAL ASSETS 22,835,911 21,647,697

(Continued)



LG CORP. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT SOF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS OF DECEMBER 31,2018 AND 2017CONTINUED)

Korean won
December 31, December 31,
2018 2017
(In millions)
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
CURRENTLIABILITIES :

Current derivative liabilities (Notes 5 and 34) 181 1,982

Trade payables (Notes 5, 30 and 34) 1,634,670 2,261,617

Other payables (Notes 5, 30 and 34) 569,199 678,813

Short-term borrowings (Notes 5, 14 and 34) 72,956 59,086

Current portion of debentures and letegm borrowings
(Notes 5, 14 and 34) 161,526 320,726

Current tax liabilities 186,938 196,819

Provisions (Note 15) 52,430 62,766

Other current liabilies (Notes 17 and 18) 361,631 310,840

Liabilities related to assets held for sale (Note 38) - 50,959

Total current liabilities 3,039,531 3,943,608
NON-CURRENTLIABILITIES:

Norrcurrent derivative liabilities (Notes 5 and 34) - -

Otherpayables (Notes 5, 30 and 34) 77,743 59,854

Longterm borrowings (Notes 5, 14 and 34) 1,285,055 1,012,845

Net defined benefit liability (Note 16) 10,402 12,697

Deferred tax liability (Note 28) 213,536 401,631

Provisions (Note 15) 5,025 4,388

Other nonrcurrent liabilities (Note 17) 40,141 33,163

Total noncurrent liabilities 1,631,902 1,524,578
TOTAL LIABILITIES 4,671,433 5,468,186
EQUITY:

Equity attributable to the owners of the parent compe 17,998,725 16,002,559
Issued capital (Note 19) 879,359 879,359
Capital surplus (Note 20) 2,365,545 2,365,549
Other capital items (Note 19) (2,385) (2,385)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (lo
(Note 21) (292,418 (250,370)
Retained earnings (Note 22) 15,048,824 13,010,406

Non-controlling interests 165,753 176,952

TOTAL EQUITY 18,164,478 16,179,511
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 22,835,911 21,647,697
(Concluded)

See accompanying notes
























LG CORP.AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018AND 2017

1. GENERAL:
In accordance with Korean International Finare | Reporti nlgkF RS%saon)d alrldisO ((AKons ol i da
Statements), LG Corp. (the ACompanyo) is the parent c

become a global competitor through effective management and to confront char@resstiddand international
business environments, the Company acquired LG Electronics Inc., an investment company, and the real estate lease
and investment business of Serveone Co., Ltd. on March 1, 2003.

The Company has been listed on the Korea Exchaogk sharket since February 1970. After numerous-paid
capital increases, spffs and mergers, the outstanding capital stock amounted8@9,359 million, including
preferred stocks of 16,573 million as of December 31, 2018.

As of December 31,201&ytt Companyds related parties and major sha

Names of shareholders Number ofshares Percentage athareg(%) (*)

Ku, Gwang Mo 25,881,884 1472
Ku, Bon Jun 13,317,448 7.57
Ku, Bon Shik 7,728,609 4.39
Kim, Young Shik 7,253,100 412
Ku, Bon Neung and others 21,899,938 12.45
LG Yonam Education Foundation 3,675,742 2.09
LG Yonam Foundation 572,525 0.33
Others 95,542,562 54.33

Total 175,871,808 100.00

(*) Includes preferred stosk

2. STANDARDS AFFECTING PRESENTATION AND DISCLOSURE AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

The consolidated financial statements have been confiamieth e b oar d of directorsodé meet |
2019 and will be finalized at the shareholders' meeting on M26c2019.

The Company and its subsidiaries (the AGroupo) have p
with K-IFRSs

The significant accounting policies undedKRRSsfollowed by the Group in the preparation of its consolidated
financial satements are summarized below. Unless stated otherwise, these accounting policies have been applied
consistently to the Groupds consolidated financial st

Consolidated financial statementsres@repared on a historical cost basis, except for certakcumoent assets and
financial assets measured at revalued amounts or fair values at the end of each reporting period as described in the
accounting policies below. Historical costs are genema#igsured at the fair value of the consideration paid to

acquire the asset.

Fair value is the price that will be received by selling assets or paying liabilities in normal transactions between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless thiewtiee prices are directly observable or estimated
using valuation techniques. In estimating the fair value of an asset or liabiliGrdhp considers the characteristics
of the asset or liability that market participants consider when pricing teecadmbility at the measurement date.
Except for measurements that are somewhat similar to fair,\altiare not fair value, fair value of shdrased
payment transactions within the scope efARS 1102 Sharbased Payment, lease transactions witiénscope of



K-IFRS 1017 eases, the net rezdible value of KIFRS 1002 Inventories and Inventories or value in use IRKS
1036 Impairment of Assets are determined in accordance with the principles described above for measurement or
disclosure purposes

(1) Established or revised accounting standards
1) Amendments to KFRSs and new interpretations that are mandatorily effective for the current year

- K-IFRS 1109 Financial Instruments (Enactment)

The Group has applied-KcRS 1109 Financial Instrumerdasd the related consequential amendments to Kther
IFRSs that are effective for an annual period that begins on or after January 1, 2018.

K-IFRS 1109 introduced new requirements for:

1) the classification and measurement of financial assets and finkaigilities,
2) impairment of financial assets and
3) general hedge accounting.

Additionally, the Group adopted consequential amendmentslERE 1107 Financial Instruments: Disclosures that
were applied to the disclosures for 2018.

When theGroup firg applied thiK-IFRS it chose not to restate the prior period,ahdreforedid not restate the
comparativeconsolidatedinancial statements.

The main contents of the new regulations and their impact arotisolidatedinancial statements of th@roup are
as follows

1.1 Classification and measurement of financial assets

All recognized financial assets that are within the scope lBfRS 1109 are required to be measured subsequently at
amortized cost or f air v al modelformanagng thelfimaacialsassetf andthee ent i
contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.

— Debt instruments that are held within a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
and that have contractual baffows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding, are measured subsequently at amortized cost.

— Debt instruments that are held within a business model whose objective is both to collect the contractual cash
flows and to sell the debt instruments, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, are measured subsequently at fair value through
other comprehensive income (AFVTOCI 0) .

— all other debt investments and equity investments are measured subsequently at fair value through profit or
l oss (AFVTPLO) .

Despite the foregoing, the Group may make the following irrevocable election / designation at initial recognition of a
financial asset

— The Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment that is
neither held for trading nor contingent consideration recognized by an acquirer in a business combination in
other comprehensive income

- TheGroup may irrevocably designate a debt investment that meets the amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria as
measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

In the current year, the Group has not designated any debtriresgs that meet the amortized cost or FVTOCI
criteria as measured at FVTPL.

When a debt investment measured at FVTOCI is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in
other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to mofitss as a reclassification adjustment. When an

equity investment designated as measured at FVTOCI is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognized in other comprehensive income is subsequently transferred to retained earnings.



Debt irstruments that are measured subsequently at amortized cost or at FVTOCI are subject to impairment. See
(1.2) below.

The directors of the Company reviewed and ass,essed t h
based on the facts and cirastances that existed at that date and concluded that the initial applicatidRREK

1109 has had the foll owi ng withrpgardidtheoalassifidatona®d oupds f i na
measurement:

The Groupbs i nvest merm tlassifiedas AFS finaneiahasbets enddFRS 1639 w

Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. The notes have been reclassified as financial assets at

amortized cost because they are held within a business model whose objective is ttheallauractual cash

flows and they have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal

amount outstanding.

- The Groupbs investment in corporate bonlBERSOBhat wer e
have been classified as financial assets at FVTOCI because they are held within a business model whose
objective is both to collect contractual cash flows and to sell the bonds, and they have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of princiaild interest on principal outstanding. The change in the fair value of
these redeemable notes continues to accumulate in the investment revaluation reserve until they are
derecognized or reclassified.

- The Groupds i nvest men tesheld fartradiggnbrta gontingerst tonsidensiontarsing( n e i t
from a business combination) that were previously classified as AFS financial assets and were measured at fair
value at each reporting date undetARS 1109 have been designated as at FVTOCIchhage in fair value
of these equity instruments continues to be accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve.

- There is no change in the measurement of the Groupd
trading; those instruments wenedacontinue to be measured at FVTPL.

— Financial assets classified as held to maturity and loans and receivables URB& K039 that were

measured at amortized cost continue to be measured at amortized cost-UFiR8r KL09 as they are held

within a bisiness model to collect contractual cash flows and these cash flows consist solely of payments of

principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Note (1.5) below tabul ates the change iicatiorcofkadERSi fi cat i
1109.

The change in classification of the investment in redeemable notes has resulted in the fair value gain on AFS
financial assets of 1,796 million, accumulated in revaluation reserve, being reclassified to the carrying value of
the redeemable notes on the initial application date.

None of the other reclassifications of f i ntiamppmofital asse
loss, other comprehensive income or total comprehensive income in the current year.

As a result of the classification and measurementbf KRS 110 9, 6,114 million has b
basic retained earnings, a@)l 5,476 nillion has been recognized in other comprehensive inctirhas been

reflected as an item.

1.2Impairment of financial assets

In relation to the impairment of financial assetd RS 1109 requires an expected credit [os E Crhodél as
opposed to amcurred credit loss model underlKRS 1039. Th&CL model requires the Group to account for
ECLsand changes in thogCLsat each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of
the financial assets. In other words, it islmager necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses
are recognized.

Specifically, KIFRS 1109 requires the Group to recognize a loss allowance for ECLs on:
(1) Debt investments measured subsequently at amortized cost or at FVTOCI,
(2) Lease receivables,
(3) Trade receivables and contract assets, and
(4) Financial guarantee contracts to which the impairment requirementdF6 %1109 apply.



In particular, KIFRS 1109 requires the Group to measure the loss allowance for adlnasttument at an amount
equal to the lifetime ECdif the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, or if the financial instrument is a purchased or originated-amguhired financial asset. Howavydf the

credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition (except for a purchased
or originated creditmpaired financial asset), the Group is required to measure the loss allowance for that financial
instrunent at an amount equal to-rnth ECL. KIFRS 1109 also requires a simplified approach for measuring the
loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime ECL for trade receivables, contract assets and lease receivables in
certain circumstances

The Group ha assessed whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition of
financial instruments that remain recognized on the date of initial applicationFRE& 1109 (i.e.January 1, 2018),
andthe directors have assesseddtedlit risk of the respective financial instruments on the date of their initial
recognition

As a result of the adoption of-KcRS 1109, ) 638 million related to investmen
as retained earnings.

The consequential andmentstod FRS 1107 have also resulted in more e
exposure to credit risk in the consolidated financial statementi(tee34)

1.3 Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

A significant change intracced by KIFRS 1109 in the classification and measurement of financial liabilities relates
to the accounting for changes in the fair value of a financial liability designated as at FVTPL attributable to changes
in the credit risk of the issuer.

Specificaly, K-IFRS 1109 requires that the changes in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to

changes in the credit risk of that liability be presented in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the
effects of changesinthhei abi | it ydés credit risk in other comprehens,]
mi smatch in profit or |l oss. Changes in fair valwue att
reclassified to profit or loss, but arestead transferred to retained earnings when the financial liability is

derecognized. Previously, undeflKRS 1039, the entire amount of the change in the fair value of the financial

liability designated as at FVTPL was presented in profit or loss.

The aoption of KIFRS 1109 has no significant effect on the classification and measurement of financial liabilities
of the Group.

1.4 General hedge accounting

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain the three types of hedge accounting. Howeaver, grea
flexibility has been introduced to the types of transactions eligible for hedge accounting, specifically broadening the
types of instruments that qualify for hedging instruments and the types of risk componentdidimgial items

that are eligibldor hedge accounting. In addition, the effectiveness test has been replaced with the principle of an
6economic relationship.06 Retrospective assessment of
di sclosure requi r ekeanagemeataivities havd adso ligenantrqudced. r i s

Inaccordancewith{ FRS 11096s transition provisions {fIlRE hedge
1109 hedge accounting requirements prospectively from the date of initial application ay Ja2048. The

Groupbs qualifying hedging relationships in place as
accordance with HFRS 1109 and were, therefore, regarded as continuing hedging relationships. No rebalancing of

any of the hedgig relationships was necessary on January 1, 2018. As the critical terms of the hedging instruments
match those of their corresponding hedged items, all hedging relationships continue to be effectivdkiR&er K

11096s effecti vene s The @rsup kas alsmpohdesignated any hedgimerelaticiships under

K-IFRS 1109 that would not have met the qualifying hedge accounting criteria tiEBRISKL039.






(*1) Among AFS financial assets as of and for the year ended December 31maéketable equity securities and
unmarketable equity securities welesignatedsfinancial assets measured at FVTOCI by applying the irrevocable
election at the date of initial application.

(*2) The availablefor-put financial instruments were classified asnarketable equity securitias the year ended
December 31, 2017, but ctiféed financial assets were measured at FVTPL by applyingethtesécuritiesf K-

IFRS 1109

- K-IFRS 1115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Enactment)

In the current year, the Group has applietFRS 1115, Revenue from Contracts with Customehsch is effective

for an annual period that begins on or after January 1, 26IBRE 1115 introduced a fivetep approach to revenue
recognition. Far more prescriptive guidance has been addetHR& 1115 to deal with specific scenarios. Details

oft he new requirements as well as their impact on the

The Group has applied-KcRS 1115 in accordance with the fully retrospective transitional approach using the
expedient in KIFRS 1115 allowig both nordisclosure of the amount of the transaction price allocated to the

remaining performance obligations, and an explanation of when it expects to recognize that amount as revenue for all
reporting periods presented before the date of initial egjpn, i.e., January 1, 2018.

- K-IFRS 1103 ShareBased Payment (Amendment)

The amendments include: 1) when measuring the fair value oflshsee payment, the effects of vesting and non
vesting conditions on the measurement of eattied shardasedbayment should be consistent with the
measurement of equisettled sharbased payment; 2) shdbased payment transaction in which the Group settles
the sharebased payment arrangement net by withholding a specified portion of the equity instrumstatitway

tax withholding requirements would be classified as equity settled in its entirety, if otherwise would be classified as
equity settled without the net settlement feature; and 3) when @etld shardased payment changes to an
equity-settled sharebased payment because of modifications of the terms and conditions, the original liability
recognized is derecognized and the egséitled sharbased payment is recognized at the modificatiate fair
value. Any difference between the carryamgount of the liability at the modification date and the amount
recognized in equity at the same date would be recognized in profit and loss immediately. The applicafiddSof K
1102 has not had a significant impact on the financial position and/ocitshaerformance of the Group.

- K-IFRS 104@ Transfers of Investment Property (Amendment)

The amendments clarify that a transfer to, or from, investment property necessitates an assessment of whether a
property meets, or has ceased to meet, the defirofimvestment property, supported by observable evidence that a
change in use has occurred. The amendments further clarify that situations other than the ones-ligfe# tDKO0

may evidence a change in use, and that a change in use is possitidedotigs under construction (i.e., a change in
use is not limited to completed properties). The applicationBfRS 1040 has not had a significant impact on the
financial position and/or financial performance of the Group.

- K-IFRS 2123 Foreign Currencyransactions and Advance Consideration (Enactment)

The interpretation addresses how to determine the 06da
rate to use on initial recognition of an asset, expense or income, when considerdtiahifem has been paid or
received in advance in a foreign currency, which resulted in the recognition ofraoma@tary asset or nanonetary
liability (e.g., a norrefundable deposit or deferred revenue).

The interpretation specifies that the datté¢ransaction is the date on which the entity initially recognizes the non
monetary asset or nanonetary liability arising from the payment or receipt of advance consideration. If there are
multiple payments or receipts in advance, the interpretatiariresgan entity to determine the date of transaction for
each payment or receipt of advance consideration.

The Group does not anticipate that the application of
consolidated financial statemis because the Group already accounts for transactions involving the payment or
receipt of advance consideration in a foreign currency in a way that is consistent with the enactment.



- Annual Improvements to #FRSs 20142016 Cycle

The annual improvenmgs include amendments teIKRS 1101, FirsfTime Adoption, and KFRS 1028, Investment

in Associates and Joint Ventures. The amendmentslERIS 1028 clarify that the option for a venture capital
organization and other similar entities to measure invasrin associates and joint ventures at FVTPL is available
separately for each associate or joint venture, and that election should be made at initial recognition of the associate
or joint venture. In respect of the option for an entity that is not asiment entity (IE) to retain the fair value
measurement applied by its associates and joint ventures that are IEs when applying the equity method, the
amendments make a similar clarification that this choice is available for each IE associate ovHnjoiet

The Group does not anticipate that the application of the amendments in the future will have any impact on the
Groupds consolidated fi nanci a-timesadogter &f KRB hosa vanturetcdpial Gr o u |
organization. Brthermore, the Group does not have any associate or joint venture that is an IE.

The impact of changes in accounting policiest@nconsolidatefinancial statements due to newly introduced
standards and interpretations fréime current term is as folles (Unit: Korean won in millions)

201801-01
Category Before diange Adjustments After changing
CURRENT ASSETS 5,367,809 1,065 5,368,874
Unincorporated constructio 198,757 (198,757) -
Contract asset - 199,822 199,822
O_ther c_urr_ent astewith no 5169,052 ) 5 169,052
financial impact
NON-CURRENT ASSETS 16,279,888 470,185 16,750,073
Investments in associates 12,753,226 470,185 13,223,411
and joint ventures
Other norcurrent assets 3,526,662 . 3,526662
with no financial impact
TOTAL ASSETS 21,647,697 471,250 22,118,947
CURRENT LIABILITIES 3,943,608 1,065 3,944,673
Overcharged construction 107,745 (107,745) -
Contract liability - 106,733 106,733
Provisions 62,766 2,077 64,843
Othe_r curr(_ant_ liabilities vih 3.773,097 ) 3.773,097
no financial impact
NON-CURRENT
LIABILITIES 1,524,578 22,702 1,547,280
Deferred tax liability 401,631 22,702 424,333
Other noacurreptllgb|llt|es 1,122,947 ) 1,122,947
with no financial impact
TOTAL LIABILITIES 5,468,186 23,767 5,491,953
Accumulated other
comprehensive income (250,370) (7,272) (257,642)
(loss)
Retained earnings 13,010,406 454,755 13,465,161
Other equity with no 3,419,475 - 3,419,475

financial impact



On the other hand, the effecttbese changes on each item of equity as of the date of initial application is as follows:

Capital attributable to owners of the parent compa
Accumulated

other Other equity
Retained comprehensive with no financial Non-controlling
Category earnings income (loss) impact interests Total

December 31, 2017

(amount reported) 13,010,40€ (250,370 3,242,523 176,952 16,179,511
Firsttime adoption

of K-IFRS 1109 (*) 8,170 (7,558 - - 612
Effect ofincometax

on theeffect of

introduction (260) 286 - - 26
Subtotal 7,910 (7,272 - - 638
Firsttime adoption

of K-IFRS 1115 (*) 469,573 - - - 469,573
Effect ofincometax

on theeffect of

introduction (22,728 - - - (22,728
Subtotal 446,845 - - - 446,845
January 1, @18 (first

application date) 13,465,161 (257,642 3,242,523 176,952 16,626,994

(*) The effects are ginly due to the effects of changes in accounting policies of associates and joint ventures held
by the Group.

2) New and revised HFRSs in issuehut not yet effective
(1) General impact of application ofFKcRS 111® Leases

K-IFRS 1116 provides a comprehensive model for the identification of lease arrangements and their treatments in the
financial statements for both lessors and lessed¢SRIS 116 will supersede the current lease guidance, including
K-IFRS 1017, Leases, and the related interpretations when it becomes effective for accounting periods beginning on
or after January 1, 2019. The date of initial application-t#RS 1116 for the Grquwill be January 1, 2019.

The lessees have an option to choose between the full retrospective application for each reporting date and modified
retrospective application at the initial application date.

The Group plans to apply the modified retrospectipproach as of January 1, 2019, in accordance witfRS

1116. Therefore, the cumulative effect of applyingARS 1116 will be adjusted in the retained earnings (or, where
appropriate, other components of equity) at the date of initial applicatiothexadmparative consolidated financial
statements will not be restated.

The lessee and lessor must account for each lease element of the lease, separate frdeateeaiement in a lease
contract. The lessee is required to recognize lease asseiadittes that represents the right to use the underlying
assets and the obligation to pay the lease payments. However, in the casetefraHegse and smalhluebased
lease, the exemption provisions of the standard may be selected. In additiesseleds not required to separate the
lease component from the ntease component in accordance with the simplified approach, and can account for
each lease component and related-lease component as one lease component.

In contrast to lessee accomg, K-IFRS 1116 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in K
IFRS 1117.



(2) Identification of lease

The Group will make use of the practical expedient available on transitiofRBRE 1116 not to reassess whether a
contract isor contains a lease. Accordingly, the definition of a lease in accordance \WR31117 will continue
to apply to those leases entered or modified before January 1, 2019.

The change in definition of a lease mainly relates to the concept of cortfeREK 1116 distinguishes between
leases and service contracts on the basis of whether the use of an identified asset is controlled by the customer.
Control is considered to exist if the customer has:

- the right to obtain substantially all of the econotrénefits from the use of an identified asset; and
- the right to direct the use of that asset.

The project has shown that the new definition #FARS 1116 will not change significantly the scope of contracts
that meet the definition of a lease for the@®.

(3) Impact on Lessee Accounting
a. Operating leases

K-IFRS 1116 will change how the Group accounts for leases previously classified as operating leasetHRfsler K
1017, which were off balance sheet. On initial application-tFRS 1116, for dlleases (except as noted below), the
Group will:

a) recognize righof-use assets and lease liabilities in the consolidated statements of financial position, initially
measured at the present value of the future lease payments;

b) recognize depreciaticof right-of-use assets and interest on lease liabilities in the consolidated statements of
profit or loss; and

) separate the total amount of cash paid into a principal portion (presented within financing activities) and interest
(presented within operaty activities) in the consolidated statements of cash flows.

Under KIFRS 11186, righbf-use assets will be tested for impairment in accordance WiFRS 1036, Impairment
of Assets. This will replace the previous requirement to recognize a provisiongimus lease contracts.

For shoriterm leases (lease term of 12 months or less) and leasesdllosvassets (such as personal computers
and office furniture), the Group will opt to recognize a lease expense on a diraddsis as permitted by-lkRS
1116.

TheGroup is analyzing the effect of the introduction of stémdard orits consolidated financial statements
b. Finance leases

The main difference betweenlKRS 1116 and KFRS 1017 with respect to assets formerly held under a finance
lease is the measurement of the residual value guarantees provided by the lessee to thdA&Sdr1 X6 requires

that the Group recognize as part of its lease liability only the amount expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, rather thaime maximum amount guaranteed as requiredblyRS 1017. On initial application, the

Group will present equipment previously included in property, plant and equipment within the line item fof-right

use assets and the lease liability, previously predemithin borrowing, will be presented in a separate line for lease
liabilities.

Based on an analysis of the Groupds finance | eases as
circumstances that exist at that date, the directors of the Corhpaeyssessed that the impact of this change will
not have an i mpact on the amounts recognized in the G



(4) Impact on Lessor Accounting

Under KIFRS 1116, a lessor continues to classify leases as either fieases or operating leases and account for
those two types of leases differently. HowevedARS 1116 has changed and expanded the disclosures required, in
particular regarding how a lessor manages the risks arising from its residual interest in k=tsed as

Under KIFRS 1116, an intermediate lessor accounts for the head lease and the sublease as two separate contracts.
The intermediate lessor is required to classify the sublease as a finance or operating lease by reference to the right
of-use asset ming from the head lease (and not by reference to the underlying asset as was the castiR®ler K
1017).

Because of this change, the Group will reclassify certain of its sublease agreements as finance leases. As required by
K-IFRS 1109, an allowancerf&CLs will be recognized on the finance lease receivables. The leased assets will be
derecognized and finance lease asset receivables recognized. This change in accounting will change the timing of
recognition of the related revenue (recognized in finamo@me).

- K-IFRS 1109 Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (Amendment)

The amendments to-K=RS 1109 clarify that for the purpose of assessing whether a prepayment feature meets the
SPPI condition, the party exercising the option may paga®ive reasonable compensation for the prepayment
irrespective of the reason for prepayment. In other words, prepayment features with negative compensation do not
automatically fail SPPI. The amendment applies to annual periods beginning on or atiey 1a2019, with earlier
application permitted.

- K-IFRS 1028 Long-Term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures (Amendment)

The amendment clarifies thatlRRS 1109, including its impairment requirements, applies toterrg interests.
Furthermorein applying KIFRS 1109 to londerm interests, an entity does not take into account adjustments to
their carrying amount required by-IKRS 1028 (i.e., adjustments to the carrying amount ofteng interests

arising from the allocation of losses oétimvestee or assessment of impairment in accordance WiRE& 1028).

The amendments apply retrospectively to annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019. Earlier
application is permitted.

- Annual Improvements to #FRSs 20152017 Cygle

The annual improvements include amendments to four standards, su¢dRRS K012, Income Taxes-KkRS
1023, Borrowing Costs; #FRS 1103, Business Combinations; andHRS 1111, Joint Arrangements.

1.K-IFRS 1012 Income Taxes

The amendments cléy that an entity should recognize the income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss,
other comprehensive income or equity according to where the entity originally recognized the transactions that
generated the distributable profits. This is¢hse irrespective of whether different tax rates apply to distributed and
undistributed profits.

2.K-IFRS 1023 Borrowing Costs

The amendments clarify that if any specific borrowing remains outstanding after the related asset is ready for its
intended ge or sale, that borrowing becomes part of the funds that an entity borrows generally when calculating the
capitalization rate on general borrowings.

3. K-IFRS 1103 Business Combinations

The amendments to-KRS 1103 clarify that when an entity obtainstrohof a business that is a joint operation,

the entity applies the requirements for a business combination achieved in stages, including remeasuring its
previously held interest (fAiPHI O0) in the dewannt operat i
unrecognized assets, liabilities and goodwill relating to the joint operation.

4. K-IFRS 11111 Joint Arrangements

The amendments to-K=RS 1111 clarify that when a party that participates in, but does not have joint control of, a
joint operation thiis a business obtains joint control of such a joint operation, the entity does not remeasure its PHI
in the joint operation.



All the amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019, and generally require
prospective appation. Earlier application is permitted.

- K-IFRS 1019 Employee Benefits Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (Amendment)

The amendments clarify that the past service cost (or the gain or loss on settlement) is calculated by measuring the
defined benefit liability (asset) using updated assumptions and comparing benefits offered and plan assets before and
after the plan amendment (or curtailment or settlement). but ignoring the effect of the asset ceiling (that may arise
when the defined benefilan is in a surplus position).-kRS 1019 is now clear that the change in the effect of the

asset ceiling that may result from the plan amendment (or curtailment or settlement) is determined in a second step
and is recognized in the normal manner in pttzenprehensive income.

The paragraphs that relate to measuring the current service cost and the net interest on the net defined benefit
liability (asset) have also been amended. An entity will now be required to use the updated assumptions from this
remeasurement to determine current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the reporting period after the
change to the plan. In the case of the net interest, the amendments make it clear that for the period post plan
amendment, the net interest@culated by multiplying the net defined benefit liability (asset) as remeasured under
paragraph 99 with the discount rate used in the remeasurement (also taking into account the effect of contributions
and benefit payments on the net defined benefilitiaasset)).

The amendments are applied prospectively. They apply only to plan amendments, curtailments or settlements that
occur on or after the beginning of the annual period in which the amendmentERSKL019 are first applied. The
amendments tB-IFRS 1019 must be applied to annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019, but they can
be applied earlier if an entity elects to do so.

- K-IFRS 1115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Amendment)

This amendment relates to prevent thasien of meaning 'contract' referred inlIRRS 1115 paragraph 129.1 to
‘individual contract' in relation to ‘additional disclosure of contracts based on contract costs incurred to date,' so that
even if application of KFRS 1115 is adopted, the rangedidclosure has not been reduced. In additiciF RS

1115 does not distinguish the types of contracts that the service contracts that did not qualify for the application of
K-IFRS 1011 in paragraph 45.1 can be qualified4H#RS 1115 paragraph 129.1 andkito clarify that the range of

the contracts subject to make disclosure in accordance with paragraph 129.1 can be expanded compared to the
previous standard. This amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 201@rand earli
application is permitted.

- K-IFRS 2123 Interpretation Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments (Amendment)

K-IFRS 2123 interpretation sets out how to determine the accounting tax position when there is uncertainty over
income tax treatments. The inpeetation requires an entity to:
— determine whether uncertain tax positions are assessed separately or as a group; and
— assess whether it is probable that a tax authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment used, or proposed to be
used, by an entitin its income tax filings:
o If yes, the entity should determine its accounting tax position consistently with the tax treatment used or
planned to be used in its income tax filings.
o If no, the entity should reflect the effect of uncertainty in deteingiits accounting tax position.

The interpretation is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019. Entities can apply the
interpretation with either full retrospective application or modified retrospective application withaimesit of
comparatives retrospectively or prospectively.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application of the amendments in the future will have an

i mpact on the Groupds consolidated financial statemen



(2) Basis of preparing finanal statements
1) Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical coskteysidor certain neourrent
assets and financial instruments that are measured at revalued amounts or fair valueshed extile accounting
policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for assets.

2) Functional and reportingurrencies

Theconsolidatedinancial statemergof the Grouparepresented in theurrency of the primary economic
environment in which th& r o u p 6 soperatet(iis funct@sal currency). Tl#oup &inctional currency and the
reporting currency for theonsolidatedinancial statements is Korearon.

3) Basis of onsolidaton

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the finastaigimerg of the Company and entities (including

structured entities) controlled by tlBoup Control is achieved where tBroupl) has the power over the investee

2) is exposed, or has Htg, to variable returns from its involvement with the invesiad 3) has the ability to use its

power to affect its returns. The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes to onenore of the three elements of control listed above.

When theGrouphas less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when the
voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the releaetivities of the investee unilaterally.

The Company considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not the Company's voting rights
in an investee are suffigieto give it power, including:

- the size of the Company's holding @ftvmg rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other
vote holders;

— potential voting rights held by the Company, other vote holders or other parties;

- rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

- any additional facts andrcumstances that indicate that the Company has, or does not have, the current ability
to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders' meetings.

When necessary, adjustments made to theonsolidatedinancial statemergof subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with those udadthe Company.

All intragroup transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation

Changesinth&roupdbs owner ship interests i nGrosiplobirgicahtrobovertees t hat
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amouniSrifiies i nt er est s and
controlling interests are adjusted to eeflthe changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the pammtrolling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid

or received is recognized directly in equity and attribtieettie owners of thesroup

When theGrouploses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retainedn¢iip e
previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary and amontrohing
interests. When assets of the subsidiary are carried at revalued amounts or fair values and the related cumulative gain
or loss has been recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, the amounts previously
recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are accounted foiGifithad directly
disposed of the relevant assets (reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly to retained earnings). The fair
value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognized as the fair
value on initial recognition for subsequent accaumtinder KIFRS 1039 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measuremenbr, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a jointly
controlled entity.



4) TheGroup Bivestments in suldiaries as of December 32018, are as follows (UnitKorean worin millions):

Percentage of ownersh
and voting right held by

the Group As of and for the year end@&bcember 31, 2@L
Closing Dec 31, Dec 31, Net
Subsidiary Location date 2018 2017 Assets Liabilities Sdes income
ff&')c(flp)o’a“onse“’eo“e €O south Korea 12/31 100.00% 100.00% 2,799,147 1,772,317 5,297,333 126,707
Serveone (Nanjing). Co., Ltd. China 12/31 100.00% 100.00% 331,051 244,719 664,468 16,110
Serveone Construction Co., Li China 12/31 100.00% 100.00% 214,691 182,926 413,206 11,807
Konjiam Yewon Co., Ltd. South Korea 12/31 90.00% 90.00% 8,937 1,001 1,325 (161)
ft'ijVEONE (Guangzhou) Co China 12131 100.00% 100.00% 172,382 142,331 298,066 6,102
ft'ijVEONE VIETNAM Co., Vietnam 12/31 100.00% 100.00% 90,878 54,106 243,823 19,170
ggf\c’,EOONE POLAND Poland 12/31 100.00%  100.00% 59,696 52,854 176,136 4,395
Mirae M South Korea 12/31 100.00% 100.00% 13,023 1,614 4,880 (8,327)
Dream nuri South Korea 12/31 100.00% 100.00%0 705 84 719 130
Serveone Co., Ltd*2) South Korea 12/31 100.00% - 1,214,06€ 849,045 278,460 2,959
S&I VIETNAM
CONSTRUCTION CO.LTD. Vietnam 12/31 100.00% ; 8,052 8,430 ; (1,462)
(*3)
LG CNS Co., Ltd. South Korea 12/31 84.95% 84.95% 2,296,266  1,232,56€ 2,828,574 104,565
LG N-Sys Inc.(*4) South Korea 12/31 - 100.00% - - - -
BizTechPartners Co., Ltd.
(formerly BNE Partners, Co., South Korea 12/31 95.35% 95.35% 27,982 12,457 96,567 2,091
Ltd.) (*5)
LG CNS Philippine, Inc. Philippines 12/31 100.00% 100.00% - 3,169 - -
LG CNS Europe B.V. Netherlands 12/31 100.00% 100.00% 18,794 14,100 27,457 956
LG CNS America Inc. USA 12/31 100.00% 100.00% 43,015 36,328 84,730  (10,466)
PT LG CNS Inlonesia Indonesia 12/31 100.00% 100.00% 3,686 5,970 9,839 (155)
Et’:j‘;“e Brasil Services de T... Brazil 12131 100.00% 100.00% 1,647 436 3,088 486
h}% CNS UCESS Philippines,  ppiinsines 12/31 100.00% 100.00% 83 ; ; ;
LG CNS China, Inc. China 12/31 100.00% 100.00% 95,477 64,388 136,181 12,783
LG CNS India Pvt., Ltd. India 12/31 100.00% 100.00% 10,001 8,903 11,739 550
LG CNS Colombia SAS Colombia 12/31 100.00% 100.00% 20,726 21,850 13,174 (5,853
SBI-LG Systems Co., Ltd*6) Japan 12/31 - 51.00% - - - -
Egref_‘tg'ecom South Korea 12/31 93.93% 93.93% 8,692 9,457 1,268 1,705
LG CNS Malaysia Sdn Bhd Malaysia 12/31 100.00% 100.00% 4,764 6,839 6,062 (1,299
LG CNS Saudi Arabia LLC Saudi Arabia 12/31 51.00% 51.00% 55 15 - -
LG CNS JAPAN, Co., Ltd. Japan 12/31 100.00% 100.00% 23,663 12,855 37,536 1,237
Collain Healthcare, LLE*7) USA 12/31 - 70.00% - - - -
LG CNS Uzbekistan, LLC Uzbekistan 12/31 51.00% 51.00% 292 664 1,144 (136)
Haengbokmaru Co., Ltd. South Korea 12/31 100.00% 100.00% 1,363 204 2,635 425
LG CNS VIETNAM CO., Vietnam 12/31 100.00%  100.00% 11,345 10,113 21,221 623
LG CNS FUND | LLC(*3) USA 12/31 100.00% ; . ; ; (275)
Sejong Green Pow¢t8) South Korea 12/31 19.91% 19.91% 36,567 40,863 1,406 (380)
LG Sports Ltd. South Korea 12/31 100.00% 100.00% 124,312 38,559 60,495 632
ﬁti’\t"ufgagemem Developmen g, ik Korea 12/31 100.00% 100.00% 93,043 56,234 86,851 4,303
Lusem Co., Ltd. (*9) South Korea 12/31 - 67.96% - - - -
LG Holdings Japan Co., Ltd. Japan 12/31 100.00% 100.00% 254,890 49,609 7,943 2,901
LG Corp. U.S.A. USA 12/31 100.00% 100.00% 202,923 41,663 - (529

(*1) Changed its name during current period.

(*2) Established by dividing it from S&I Corporation (former, Serveone) and named Serveone Co., Ltd

(*3) Establishé during current period.

(*4) Merged with the LG CNS Co., Ltduring the current period.

(*5) Acquired additionally during the current period.

(*6) Disposed during current period (see Note 36)

(*7) Disposed during current period.

(*8) Incorporated as subsidiary in its investment in the associate due to its obligation to purchase shares under the arrangement
during current periogsee Note 30)

(*9) Disposed during current period (see Note. 36)



5) As of December 312018, theconsolidated financialgsition and the share of n@ontrolling interests of ajor
subsidiarieshat have nostontrolling interestaire as followgUnit: Korean wonn millions):

LG CNS Co., Ltd.

Current assets 1,585,859
Non-current assets 889,462
Total assets 2,475,321
Current liabilities 815,042
Non-current liabilities 563,906
Total liabilities 1,378,948
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 1,099,326
Equity attributable to nerontrolling interests (2,953)
Total equity 1,096,373

6) For the year ended December 3018, the consolidated financial performancelsmajor subsidiariethat have
non-controlling interestsire as followgUnit: Korean wornin millions):

LG CNS Co., Ltd.

Revenue 3,117,656
Operating income (loss) 187059
Profit (loss) for the year 110,508
Other comprehensive income (loss) (10,673)
Total comprehensive income for the year 99,835

7) For the year ended December 2218, the consolidated cash flows of major subsidiattest have non
controllinginterestsare as followgUnit: Korean wonn millions):

LG CNS Co., Ltd.

Cash flows from operating activities 158,890
Cash flows from investing activities (67,744)
Cash flows from financing activities (5,645)
Net change in cash and basqjuivalents 85,501
>(/Zéalasrh and cash equivalents at the beginnin 352,557
Effects of exchange rate changes on the 1,288

balance of cash held in foreign currencie
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of ye 439,346




8) The ownership iterest held by neaontrolling interests and details of financial position, resafloperation and
dividends vested in necontrolling interests by each of the major subsidiaaiesas followgin millions of Korean
won):

LG CNS Co., Ltd.

Ownershipinterest held by nerontrolling

; 15.6%
Interests
Cumulative norcontrolling interests 162,469
Ne;t income(loss) vested in nenontrolling 18,834
Interests
Comprehensive income vested in non
N 17,133
controlling interests
Dividends paid to nowgontrolling interests 2,755

(3) Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesseseaaccounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the aedjisifin values of
the assets transferred by Beoup liabilities incurredby theGroupto the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by tloupin exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisitfetated costs are generally
recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the iderdible assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognized at their fair value at
the acquisition date, except that:

— deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets related to employee benefit arrangements are recognized
and measured iaccordance with HFRS 1012 and KFRS 1019respectively;

— liabilities or equity instruments related to shesed payment arrangements of the acquiree or-bhaesl
payment arrangements of tBeoupentered in to replace sharased payment arrangemenf the acquiree are
measured in accordance withIKRS 1102 ShareBased Paymenat the acquisition date; and

— assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordancéRRS KLO5Non-Current
Assets Held for Sale and Discanted Operationsre measured in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of a) the consideration transferred, b) the amount-of any non
controlling interests in the acquiree and c) the fair value of the acquirer'susigvield equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisitate amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed. If, after reassessment, the net of the acquidétteramounts of the identifiable assetsu&regl and
liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of a) the consideration transferred, b) the amount ofcanyralting interests
in the acquiree and c) the fair value of the acquiRHEin the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognized
immediately inprofit or loss as a bargain purchase gain

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity's net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either atufaiorat the nowcontrolling

interests' proportionate share of the recognized amounts of the acquiree's identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transabijemansaction basis. Other types of mamtrolling interests are

measured at fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in anefRRSK

When the consideration transferred by @reupin a business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting

from a contingent consideration arrangement, the camingpnsideration is measured at its acquisitiate fair

value and included as part of the consideration transferred in a business combination. Changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that qualify as measurefpenibd adjustments arejasted retrospectively, with

corresponding adjustments against goodwill. Measurepentd adjustments are adjustments that arise from

addi tional information obtained during the Omeasur eme
date about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date



The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as
measuremenperiod adjustments depends on how the contingent consideistitassified. Contingent

consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in accordance-IHRSK1039 or KIFRS 1037 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assetas appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss being recognized in profit or
loss

When a business comlgition is achieved in stages, Beoups previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e., the date wherotlq@obtains control) and the resulting gain

or loss, if any, is recognized in profit lmss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition
date, that have previously been recognized in other comprehensive income, are reclassified to profit or loss where
such treatment would be appropriate if that interest was didpafs

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, thBroupreports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete.

Those provisional ammts are adjusted during the measurement period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities
are recognized, to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date
that, if known, would have affected tamounts recognized at that date.

(4) Foreign currency translation

The individual financiaktatemergof each group entity are presented in the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (its functional currency). For thegmugh the consolidated financial
statements, the resutt§ operationsand financial position of each group entity are expressed in Kareajwhich
is the functional currency of the entity and the presentation currency for the consolidated finanniaintta

In preparing the financigtatemergoft he i ndi vi dual entities, transactions
functional currencyffforeign currencied are recognized at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Athe end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated

at the rates prevailing at that date. Noanetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign

currencies are retranslated at the ratesgiling at the date when the fair value was determined-rimmetary items

that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which theaciset for:

— exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for future productive
use, which are included in the cost of those assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on
those foreign cuency borrowings;

— exchange differences on transactions entered into in order to hedge certain foreign currency risks; and

— exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement
is neither planned norkiély to occur (therefordorming part of the net investment in the foreign operation),
which are recognized initially in other comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to profit or loss on
disposal or partial disposal of the net investment.

Fort he purpose of presenting the consolidated financi al
operations are expressed in Korean won using exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Income
and expense items are trited at the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuated
significantly during that period, in which case the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognized in ottemprehensive income and accumulated in equity (attributed to
non-controlling interestas appropriate). On the disposal of a forei
interest in a foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of coott@l a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation

or partial disposal of an interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign operation of which the
retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of the accumulated exchamgeodiffén respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Group are reclassified to profit or loss. Any exchange differences that have

previously been attributed to na@ontrolling interests are derecognized, but they are not reclassifieafitcoptoss.



In the case of a partial disposal (im0 loss of control) of a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are reattributeectmtroliing interests in equity and

are notrecognized in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals fiaetial disposals of associates or joint
arrangements that do not result in the Group losing significant influence or joint control), the proportionate share of
the accumulated exchangéferences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate. Exchange differésingsaae recognized in
other comprehensive income.

(5) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash, savings and checking accounts and highly ligieidrshoréstments
(maturities of three months or less fréime date ofcquisition) Bank overdraft is accounted for as skerm
borrowings.

(6) Financial instruments

Financi al assets and financi al | $oAfimandial poditiensvhedtr e r ecogn
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of theumstnt.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities atFVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial

liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilgls atFVTPL are recognized immediately in profit or loss.

(7) Financial assets

All regular-way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized and derecognized etfatetitzalis.
Regularway purchases or sales are purchases or sales of finarseia gt require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

All recognized financial assets are measured subsequently in their entirety at either amortized cost or fair value,
depending on the daification of the financial assets.

1) Classification of financial assets

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are measured subsequently at amortized cost:

The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is tortawididil assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows

The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments thameet the following conditions are measured subsequently at FVTOCI:

The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling the financial assets

The contractual terms of thméncial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

By default, all other financial assets are measured subsequently at FVTPL.

Despite the foregoing, the Groumynmake the following irrevocable election / designation at initial recognition of a
financial asset:

The Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment in other
comprehensive income if certain criteria aret (see 13) below)

The Group may irrevocably designate a debt investment that meets the amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria as
measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismaich)(betow)



1-1)Amortized cost anéffective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a debt instrument and allocating
interest income over the relevant period. For financial assets other than purchased or originatethanestit

financial assets (i,eassets that are credfitpaired on initial recognition), the effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the #ective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or dis¢exotailingECLS through the

expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the debt
instrument on initial recognitin For purchased or originated creiditpaired financial assets, a creddjusted

effective interest rate is calculated by discounting the estimated future cash flows, inElddmdo the amortized

cost of the debt instrument on initial recognition.

The amortized cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial recognition
minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amatidin using the effective interest method of any

difference between that initialmount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss allowance. The gross carrying
amount of a financial asset is the amortized cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any loss allowance.

Interest income is recognized using the effective inteneshod for debt instruments measured subsequently at
amortized cost and at FVTOCI. For financial assets other than purchased or originatéthpegdit financial

assets, interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to tleagyiisg amount of a financial
asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently becomanpeiléd (see below). For financial assets that
have subsequently become creaiipaired, interest income is recognized by applying the effective shtexte to the
amortized cost of the financial asset. If, in subsequent reporting periods, the credit risk on thagageid

financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is no longerionpdited, interest income is recognized
by applyng the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

For purchased or originated crediitpaired financial assets, the Group recognizes interest income by applying the
creditadjusted effective interest rate to the amodizest of the financial asset from initial recognition. The

calculation does not revert to the gross basis even if the credit risk of the financial asset subsequently improves so
that the financial asset is no longer créapaired.

Interest income is owgnized in profit or loss and is included in the "finance incomterest income" line item (see
Note 25)

1-2)Debt instruments classified as at FVTOCI

The corporate bondeeldby the Group are classified as at FVTOCI. Fair value is determined in themann

described iNote 49. The corporate bonds are initially measured at fair yaluetransaction costs. Subsequently,

changes in the carrying amount of these corporate bonds as a result of foreign exchange gains and losses, impairment
gains or losses drinterest income calculated using the effective interest method are recognized in profit or loss. The
amounts that are recognized in profit or loss are the same as the amounts that would have been recognized in profit

or loss if these corporate bonds legn measured at amortized cost. All other changes in the carrying amount of

these corporate bonds are recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of
investments revaluation reserve. When these corporate bonds are derectigaizemulative gains or losses

previously recognized in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss

1-3) Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

On initial recognition, the Group may make an irrevocable election (on an instrbyrErstrument basis) to
designate investments in equity instruments as at FVTOCI. Designation at FVTOCI is not permitted if the equity
investment is held for trading or if it is contingent consideration recognized by an acquirer in a business combination.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near term;

on initial recognitionit is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has evidencef a recent actual pattern of shtetm profittaking; or

it is a derivative (except for a derivative that is a financial guarantee contract or a designated and effective hedging
instrument).



Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are initiallgasured at fair valyglus transaction costs.

Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognized in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve. Tdtevewgain or loss is

not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity investniestisad, it is transferred to retained earnings.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognized in profit or loss in accordand&R8h K
1109, unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Dividends are included
in the oOfi nan cseeNtald mprefiborloss.ne it em (

1-4) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not m#wet criteria for being measured at amortized cost or FVTOCI are measured at

FVTPL. Specifically:

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Group designates an equity investment that

is neither held for trading nor a contimjeonsideration arising from a business combination as at FVTOCI on

initial recognition (see-B) above).

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortized cost criteria or the FVTOCI criterial{saedl12) above) are

classified as at FVTPL. In additi, debt instruments that meet either the amortized cost criteria or the FVTOCI

criteria may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognitthngnmiesmahshé)enhbgat (=
measuring assets or liabilities or recaimj the gains and losses on them on different bases. The Group has not
designated any debt instruments as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair \altiee end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or

losses recognized in profit or loss to the extent they are not part of a designated hedging relationship (see hedge
accounting policy). The net gain or loss recognized in profit or lossdaslany dividend or interest earned on the
financi al asset andnsi sand cllousdseeds @ nl it ABpeFaindtaleteise(rs egea iNot e s
determined irthe manner described in Note.34

2) Foreign exchange gains and losses

The carrying armount of financial assets that are denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign

currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting period. Specifically

For financial assets measured at amortized cost that are nof padesignated hedging relationship, exchange

di fferences are recogni zedd ilnospsreosfd tl iome liotsesm i(ns e eh eN oot
For debt instruments measured at FVTOCI that are not part of a designated hedging relationship, exchange

d fferences on the amortized cost of the desbtanidndtorswsmee
line item (see Note 360ther exchange differences are recognized in other comprehensive income in the

investments revaluation reserve

For financial assets measured at FVTPL that are not part of a designated hedging relationship, exchange differences
are recognized in profit or |ssMe20)n the O6o0other gains
For equity instruments measured at FVTOCI, exde differences are recognized in other comprehensive income in

the investments revaluation reserve.

3) Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognizes a loss allowanceHGLson investments in debt instruments that are measured at amortized
costor at FVTOCI, lease receivables, trade receivables and contract assets, as well as on financial guarantee
contracts. The amount &CLsis updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition of the respective finankiastrument.

The Group always recognizes lifetime ECL for trade receivables, contract assets and lease receivéiilés.orhe

these financial assets are estimated using a provisio
adjustedor factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the

current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time value of money where
appropriate.



For all other finandl instruments, the Group recognizes lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the credit risk on the financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the @ip measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an
amount equal to Xthonth ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents tHeCLsthat will result from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. In contrast, 4@onth EQ represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

3-1) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit riskafinancial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition, the

Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting date with the risk of a

default occurring on the financial instrument at thes @dtinitial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group

considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forwatidoking information that is available without undue amséffort. Forwardooking

i nformation considered includes the future prospects
from economic expert reports, financial analysts, governmental bodies, relevastattigland other similar

organiations, as well as consideration of various external sources of actual and forecast economic information that
relate to the Groupds core operations.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when assessing whether credisriskreased

significantly since initial recognition:

An actual or expected significant deterioration in the
rating

Significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit riskafparticular financial instrument, e.g.

significant increase in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor, or the length of time or the

extent to which the fair value of a financial asset has been less than its amortized cost

An actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results of the. debtor

Significant increases in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same.debtor

An actual or expected significant adverse change in the regulatory, econoetlcraridgical environment of the

debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days past due, unless

the Group has reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the creditrrisKinancial instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A
financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if:

the financial insiiment has a low risk of default

the debtor has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the nearderm

adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the
ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have | ow cre:
grade6 in accordance with t heatermplraiirydsindt available,dhe asset havad d e f |
internal ratbn@eofodmenfommang that the countaeparty

no past due amounts.

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that the Group bseopagty to the irrevocable commitment is
considered to be the date of initial recognition for the purposes of assessing the financial instrument for impairment.

guarantee contracts, the Group considers the changes in the risk that the specified debtor will default on the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify whether there has bekraatsig
increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.



3-2) Definition of default

The Group considers the followirag constituting an event of default for internal credit risk management purposes
as historical experience indicates that financial assets that meet either of the following criteria are generally not
recoverable:

when there is a breach of financial cowatseby the debtor; or
information developed internally or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking into account any collateral held by the Group).

Irrespectiveof the above analysis, the Group considers that default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past duenless the Group hageasonable and supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropréat

3-3) Creditimpaired financial assets

A financial asset is credimnpaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset isipedreitl includes observable
data about the following events:

(a) Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower

(b) A breach of contract, such as a default or past due event-BexhB8ve)

(c) The lender(s) of the borrower, for economicoo nt r act u al reasons relating to
difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise.consider

(d) It is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other finanaiganézation

(e) The disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties.

3-4) Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial

difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, &fen the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the amounts are over two years past
due, whichever occusooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject to enforcement activities under the
Groupbds recovery procedures, taking into account | ega
recognized in profit or loss.

3-5) Measurement and regaition of ECLs

The measurement &CLsis a function of the probability of default, loss given default, (ite2 magnitude of the

loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of default and loss given
defaut is based on historical data adjusted by forwlacaking information as described above. As for the exposure

at default, for financial assets, this is represented
financial guarantee contractthe exposure includes the amount drawn down as at the reporting date, together with

any additional amounts expected to be drawn down in the future by default date determined based on historical trend,
the Groupbs under st anatding meeds df the deltors sl ether rélevant fdrlealdngr e f i n
information.

For financial assets, tHeCL is estimated as the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flaatghb Group expects to receive, discounted at the
original effective interest rate. For a lease receivable, the cash flows used for determiBi@ggreconsistent with
the cash flows used in measuring the lease receivable in accordancelmRI$S K0T, Leases.

For a financial guarantee contract, as the Group is required to make payments only in the event of a default by the
debtor in accordance with the terms of the instrument that is guaranteed, the expected loss allowance is the expected
paymentsd reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it indesss any amounts that the Group expects to receive

from the holder, the debtor or any other party.



If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount egtiai¢cHEL in the
previous reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no
longer met, the Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equaldothZCL at the current reporting date,
exceptfor assets for which simplified approach was used.

The Group recognizes an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account, except foné@ntesh debt instruments

that are measured at FVTOCI, for which the loss allowance is recognized in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve, and does not reduce the carrying amount of the financial asset in
the corsolidatedstatemerg of financial position.

4) Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantifilthe risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another

entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group recognizes its retainedtiimelee asset and an associated liability for

amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Group continues to recognize the financial asset and also reeogmilagésratred borrowing

for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amo
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognized in poskt ¢m addition, on derecognition

of an investment in a debt instrument classified as at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in

the investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss. In contrast, on derecogaitimvestment in

equity instrument which the Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or

loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is

transferré to retained earnings.

(8) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost of inventories, except for those in transit, is
measured under the weightaderage method and consists of the purchase price, cost of comadiother costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Net realizable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories, less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

The arrying amount of inventories sold in the period and the amount of anydexite of inventories to net
realizable value and all losses of inventories in the period, less the amount of any reversal in the period of any write
down of the inventories, arigirfrom an increase in net realizable value, is recognized as expense during that period.

(9) Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but does not camajbmt control
over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the né assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.

The results of opations and assets and liabilities of associates or joint ventures are incorporated in these
consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting, except when the investment is classified as
held for sale, in which case it is accountedificaccordance with HFRS 1105Non-Current Assets Held for Sale

and Discontinued Operations/nder the equity method, an investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially
recognized in the consolidated statements of financial position atrwbatipusted thereafter to recognize the

Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate or joint venture. When the
Group's share of losses in an associate or a joint venture exceeds the Group's interest in thabigsotiaature

(which includes any longerm interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the associate or



joint venture), the Group discontinues recognizing its share of further losses. Additional losses are recogni@ed only
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate
or joint venture.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable as#gs, liabil

and contingent liabilities of an associate or a joint venture recognized at the date of acquisition is recognized as
goodwill, which is included within the carrying amoun:
fair value of tke identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after reassessment,

is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Upon disposal of an associate or a joint venture that results in the Group losing signifinantafiver that

associate or joint venture, any retained investment is measured at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded
as its fair value on initial recognition as a financial asset in accordance WRR¥1039. The difference between

the previous carrying amount of the associate or joint venture attributable to the retained interest and its fair value is
included in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition, the Group
accounts for hamounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income in relation to that associate or joint
venture on the same basis we would be required if that associate or joint venture had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. Thereforé a gain or loss previously recognized in other comprehensive income by that

associate or joint venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the
Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity tdipow loss (as reclassification adjustment) when it loses

significant influence over that associate or joint venture.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate or a joint venture, but continues to use the equity
method, the Group reassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been recognized
in other comprehensive income relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposathaf related assets or liabilities. In addition, the Group apph#RS

1105 to a portion of investment in an associate or a joint venture that meets the criteria to be classified as held for
sale.

The requirements of #FRS 1039 Financial InstrumentsRecognition and Measuremeate applied to determine

whet her it is necessary to recognize any impairment |
joint venture. When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment (igdodidwill) is tested for

impairment in accordance with-lckRS 1036)mpairment of Assetby comparing its recoverable amount (higher of

value in use or fair value, less costs to sell) with its carrying amount; any impairment loss recognized fofms part o

the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognized in accordanee with K

IFRS 1036 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

The Group continues to use the equity methodvdreinvestment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes an investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement to fair
value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When a group entity traasts with an associate or a joint venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate or joint venture are recognized in the Group's consolidated financial statements only
to the extent of interests in the assoc@t@int venture that are not related to the Group



(10)Interests in joint operations

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the assets, and obligations for the liabilities,tie¢ato the arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangemématexists only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous
consent of the partiésharing control.

When a group entity undertakés activities under joint operations, the Group as a joint operator recognizes in
relation to its interest in a joint operation:

- its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly;

- its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities inced jointly;

- its revenue from the sale of its share of the output arising from the joint operation;
- its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by the joint operation; and

- its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred jointly.

The Group accounts for the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses relating to its interest in a joint operation in
accordance with the K#FRSs applicable to the particular assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses.

When a group entity transacts witlpat operation in which a group entity is a joint operator (such as a sale or
contribution of assets), the Group is considered to be conducting the transaction with the other parties to the joint
operation, and gains and losses resulting from the tramss@re recognized in the Group's consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of other parties' interests in the joint operation.

When a group entity transacts with a joint operation in which a group entity is a joint operator (such assa ptircha
assets), the Group does not recognize its share of the gains and losses until it resells those assets to a third party.

(11) Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
businessless accumulated impairment losses, if gggeNote 2.(3))

A cashgenerating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annualty@ifrequently

when there isnindication that the unit may be impaired. If the neg@ble amount of the cagfenerating unit is

less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit onaghmsis based oreticarrying amount of each
asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognized directly in profit or loss in the consolidated
statemergof comprehensive income. An impairment loss recognized for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

On disposal of the relevant cagbnerating unit, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination
of the profit or loss on disposal.

(12) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated af st subsequenteumulated depreciation and accumulated

impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is directly attributable to their purchase or
construction, which includes any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the lacdt@mmndition

necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. It also includes the initial estimate
of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

Subsequent costs areaognized athe carrying amount of an asset or as an asset if it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the assets will flow t&Gtioeipand the cost of an asset can be measured reliably.
Routine maintenance and repairs are expenseatased.



The Groupdoes not depreciate land. Depreciation expense is computed using the-btgiethod based on the
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Estimated useful lives (years)

Buildings 1Gi 50
Structures 5140
Machinery 4115
Other property 2125

If each part of an item of property, plant and equipment has a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the
item, it is depreciated separately.

The Groupreviews the depreciation methdHe estimated useful liveand residual values of property, plant and
equipment at the end of each annual reporting period. If expectations differ from previous estimates, the changes are
accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate.

(13) Investment propeigs

Investment proerties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation (including property under
construction for such purposes). Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, irstement properties are measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investment properties are included in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognized upon disposal or wWigeimvestment property is permanently withdrawn

from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds andnigeacaoiynt of the asset)

is included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is derecognized.

While land is not depreciated, all other investment pragsatedepreciated based on the respective a&sets
estimated useful lives ranging frdrio 50 years using the straiglime method.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

(14) Intangide assets
1) Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carriedlass@stcumulated

amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization is recognized on a-Biraighsis over their

estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortization method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried atesstaccumulated impairment losses.

2) Internallygenerated intangible asset®search and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognized as an expethgepieriod in which it is incurred.

An internally generated intangible asset arising from development (or from the development phase of an internal
project) is recognized if, and only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:

— The technical feasiliy of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale

— The intention to complete the intangible asset and use or.sell it

— The ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

- How the intangible asset will generate probable fub@@omic benefits

— The availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use
or sell the intangible asset

— The ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset duravglibgohent



The amount initially recognized for internatignerated intangible assets is the sum of the expenditure incurred from
the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above. Where no igéeevalted

intangibe asset can be recognized, development expenditure is recognized in profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internajignerated intangible assets are reported atlesstaccumulated
amortization and aumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired separately.

3) Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets that are acquired in a business combination are recognized separately fronagdaaeil
initially recognized at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost)

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a business combination are reportéasat cost
accumulated amortization andcamulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that are
acquired separately.

4) Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognized in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognized.

(15) Impairment of &ngible and intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, Beoupreviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an imp@ssnérany such indication

exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if
any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asGeiypiestimateshe
recoverable amount of the cagénerating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individugenaséting units, or otherwise

they are allocatéto the smallest group of cagkenerating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment
at least anually and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair valess costs to selbr value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their preserm using a pretax discount rate that reflects current

market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a-gasterating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the egeherating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognized immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant @ssatried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease

(16) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

1) Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either finanainlifies or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangement and the definitions of financial liability and an equity instrument.



2) Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual intetbst assets of an entity after deducting all of
its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognized at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Repurchase of the Companyds own e q udttinequitynMotgainomessnt s i s
is recognized in profit or |l oss on the purchase, sale

3) Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortized cost usirgjféictive interest method or at FVTPL.
However, financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for derecognition or
when the continuing involvement approach applies, and financial guarantee contracts issu@tdypthare
measured in accordance with the specific accounting policies set out below.

4) Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is (i) contingent consideration of an
acquirer in a bsiness combination, (ii) held for trading or (iii) it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

— it has been acquired principally for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term;

— on initial recognition, it igart of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of-gbort profit taking; or

— itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading or contingent consideration of an acquirer in a
business combination may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

— such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement aritiecagconsisteng that would
otherwise arise;

— the financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is
managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value inestsordance with the Groggloamented
risk management or investment strategy, and information about the grouping is provided internally on that
basis; or

— it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives;[&RBKL109 permits the
entire combined contract to besignated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on changes in fair value
recognized in profit or loss to the extent that they are not part of a designated hedging relationship (see hedge
accounting policy). The net gain or loss recognized in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial
liability and is included in the 6other gains and | os

However, for financial liabilitieshat are designated as at FVTPL, the amount of change in the fair value of the
financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is recognized in other comprehensive

income, unless the recognition of the effectsofichage s i n t he | iabilityés credit ri
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. The remaining amount of change in the fair value
of liability is recognized in profit or loss. Changes in fair value attribub | e t o a fi nanci al I i ab]

recognized in other comprehensive income are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss; instead, they are
transferred to retained earnings upon derecognition of the financial liability.

Gains or bsses on financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group that are designated by the Group as at FVTPL
are recognized in profit or loss.

Fair value is determined in the manner described in Note 34



5) Financial liabilities measured subsequently at simemt cost

Financial liabilities that are not (i) contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business combination, (ii) held for
trading or (iii) designated as at FVTPL are measured subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interest
method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial liability and allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments (iheding all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to #raortized cost of a financial liability.

6) Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor failske payments when due in accordance with the terms
of debt instruments.

Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured initially at their fair values and, if not designated as at FVTPL
and do not arise from a transfer of an asset, are measured|seibdy at the higher of:

— the amount of the loss allowance determined in accordance WiRE& 1109 (see financial assets above);
and

— the amount recognized initially less, where appropriate, cumulative amortization recognized in accordance
with the revaue recognition policies set out above.

7) Foreign exchange gains and losses

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at amortized cost at the end of
each reporting period, the foreign exchange gains anéda@ss determined based on the amortized cost of the
instruments. These foreign exchange gains and | osses
or loss (see Note 26) for financial liabilities that are not part of a desigredgihg relationship. For those which

are designated as a hedging instrument for a hedge of foreign currency risk, foreign exchange gains and losses are
recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in a separate component of equity.

The fair vdue of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and
translated at the spot rate at the end of the reporting period. For financial liabilities that are measured as at FVTPL,
the foreign exchange compondorms part of the fair value gains or losses and is recognized in profit or loss for
financial liabilities that are not part of a designated hedging relationship.

8) Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognizes financial liabilitesevh , and only when, the Groupb6s obl
or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized and the consideration
paid and payable is recognized in profit or loss.

When the Group exemges with the existing lender one debt instrument into another one with the substantially

different terms, such exchange is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the
recognition of a new financial liability. Similarlyhe Group accounts for substantial modification of terms of an

existing liability or part of it as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new

liability. It is assumed that the terms are substantially differeneitiibcounted present value of the cash flows

under the new terms, including any fees paid, net of any fees received and discounted using the original effective rate,
is at least 10% different from the discounted present value of the remaining cash fllbgvsriginal financial

liability. If the modification is not substantial, the difference between (1) the carrying amount of the liability before

the modification and (2) the present value of the cash flows after modification should be recognizedanlpssfit

as the modification gain or loss within other gains and losses



(17) Leass

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases Egsdied as operating leases.

1) The Groupas lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognized as receivables at the am@mupthe n e t
investmenin the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting psviedsaeflect a constant periodic
rate of return otheGrougd s net i nvestment outstanding in respect of

Rental income from operating leases is recognized on a sthaiglitasis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
directcosts incurredn negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognized on a strailyieg basis over the lease term.

2) TheGroupas lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognized as asget&obupat their fair value at the inception of
the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is
included in theconsolidatedstatemerg of financial position as a finance leaseigéation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses are recognized immediately in
profit or loss, mless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalized in
accordance withth€rougd s gener al pol i Gee 2. Cdntingent centdlsrage recognizedsas
expenses in the periods in which they are iireal

Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense on al#tealggmis over the lease term, except where

another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset
are consumed. Contjent rentals arising under operating leases are recognized as an expense in the period in which
they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such incentives are recognized as a
liability.

The aggrega benefit of incentives is recognized as a reduction of rental expense on a-btrailgasis, except

where another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed.

(18) Borrowing casts

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of thosassets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing cdijibke for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.



(19) Derivative financial instruments

The Groupenters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its ergosiaterest rate and foreign
exchange rate risk, including foreign exchange forward contracts, interest rate swaps arur@neg swaps.

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value at the date the derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is
recognized in profit or loss immediately, unless the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging iristrument
which case the timing ahe recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedge relationshirotipe
designates certain derivatives as either hedges of recognized assets or liabilities or firm commitments (fair value
hedges), hedges of highly probable forecasistiations or hedges of foreign currency risk of firm commitments
(cash flow hedges) or hedges of net investments in foreign operations (net investment hedges).

A derivative with a positive fair value is recognized as a financial asset; a derivativengijatéve fair value is
recognized as a financial liability. A derivative is presented as @maant asset or a nanurrent liability if the
remaining maturity of the instrument is more than 12 months and it is not expected to be realized or $eftled wit
12 months. Other derivatives are presented as current assets or current liabilities.

1) Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in other financial instruments or other host contracts are treated as separate derivatives when
their risks and charaatistics are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not
measured at FVTPL.

An embedded derivative is presented as acqurent asset or a nanurrent liability if the remaining maturity of the
hybrid instrument to wich the embedded derivative relates is more than 12 manmttist is not expected to be
realized or settled within 12 months. Other embedded derivatives are presented as current assets or current liabilities.

2) Hedge accounting

The Groupdesignates ct&in hedging instruments, which include derivatives, embedded derivatives and non
derivativeswith respecto foreign currency risk, as either fair value hedges, cash flow hedges or hedges of net
investments in foreign operations. Hedges of foreign exehesk on firm commitments are accounted for as cash
flow hedges.

At the inception of the hedge relationship, the entity documents the relationship between the hedging instrument and
the hedged item, along with its risk management objectives and ieggtfat undertaking various hedge
transactions.

Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basisptipdocuments whether the hedging
instrument is highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged ite

3) Fair value hedges

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recognized in profit
or loss immediately, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability théiedbktro

the hedged risk. The change in the fair value of the hedging instrument and the change in the hedged item
attributable to the hedged risk are recognized in thaténeof theconsolidatedstatemergof comprehensive
incomerelatedto the hedgd item.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group revokes the hedging relatimhginighe hedging instrument
expires or is sold, terminated or exercisedwhen it no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. The fair value
adjustment to the caring amount of the hedged item arising from the hedged risk is amortized to profit or loss from
that date.



4) Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is

recogrized in other comprehensive income. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognized
immediately in profit or loss

Amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are reclassified to profit

or lossin the periods when the hedged item is recognized in profit or loss in the saiteninéthe consolidated

statemergof comprehensive income as the recognized hedged item. However, when the forecast transaction that is

hedged results in the recognitioha nonfinancial asset or a nefimancial liability, the gains and losses previously
accumulated in equity are transferred from equity and included in the initial measurement of the cost ef the non
financial asset or nefinancial liability.

Hedge acconting is discontinued when ti&&ouprevokes the hedging relationshighen the hedging instrument
expires or is sold, terminat®r exercisedor it no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. Any gain or loss
accumulated in equity at that time remaingduity and is recognized when the forecast transaction is ultimately

recognized in profit or loss. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the gain or loss accumulated

in equity is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

(20)Employee beefits

Contributions to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognized as an expense when employees have

rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefiterniteed using thprojectedunit

credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each reporting period. Remeasurement,
comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if applicablegtanad dme r
plan assets (excluding interest), is reflected immediately indhsolidategtatemergof financial position with a
charge or credit recognized in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement

recognized in otheranprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and will not be reclassified
to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognized in profit or loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest is

calculated by applying the discount ratehe beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or asset.
Defined benefit costs are composed of service cost (including current serviaadjpsst service cost, as well as
gains and losses on curtailments and settlements), nesiregpense (income) and remeasurement.

The Grouppresents the service cost and net interest expense (income) components in profit or loss, and the

remeasurement component in other comprehensive income. Curtailment gains and losses are accountéd for as pas

service costs.

The retirement benefit obligation recognized in the consolidated stasofiéineincial position represents the actual
deficit or surplus inth&roupd s defined benefit plans. Any surpl us
present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future
contributions to the plans.

(21) Provisions
Provisions are recognized when tBmuphas a present obligation (legal or constructias)a resulof a past event,
it is probable that th&roupwill be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the

amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration requiredhe gpedsent
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the

obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying

amount is tk present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of money is material).

r

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third

party, a receivable is recognized as an abgas virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the
amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

es



At the end of each reporting period, the remaining provision balance is reviewed and assessed to determine if the
current best estiate is being recognized. If the existence of an obligation to transfer economic benefit is no longer
probable, the related provision is reversed during the period.

1) Onerous contracts

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognizeteasured as provisions. An onerous contract
is considered to exist where tBeouphas a contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations
under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received from the contract.

2) Warranties

Provisions for the expected cost of warranty obligations under local sale of goods legislation are recognized at the
date of sale of the relevant pr odtueregsired tasettletthe raugi r ect o
obligaion.

(22) Government grants

Government grants are not recognized until thesgéssonable assurance that@reupwill comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognized in profit os los a systematic basis over the periods in whickstbep

recognizes as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, government
grants whose primary condition is that tBemupshould purchase, construct ohetwise acquire noeaurrent assets

are recognized as deferred revenue in the consolidttnert of financial position and transferred to profit or

loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grantthat are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to troupwith no future related costs are recognized in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

The benefit of a government loan at a belmarket rate of interest is treated as a government grant, measured as the
difference between proceeds received and the fair value of the loan based on prevailing market interest rates.

(23) Revenue recognition

Rewenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, netafdalued t ax ( A VAT (
returns, rebates and discounts. The Group recognizes revenue when it is reliably measurable and the inflows of
future economic benefits are lige For each type of revenue, the Group recognizes it as follows:

1) Sale of goods

The Group recognizes revenue from sale of goods when significant risks and rewards from ownership of goods have
been transferred, and retains neither continuing managerndvement to the degree usually associated with

ownership nor effective control over the goods. Therefore, the Group recognizes revenue for the manufactured goods
at acceptance and merchandises at delivery. Revenue is recogatzefddiscountsand eturns derived from

previous experience and provision are set for estimated return amounts, and if the past experience reveals that the
return amounts or the return poligyimmaterial, the gross sales amount will be recognized as revenue.

2) Renderingf service
The Group recognizes revenue from rendering service by the progress standards. The Group estimates the percentage

of completion using surveys of work performed, services performed to date as a percentage of total services to be
performed and # proportion of costs incurred to date in order to reliably measure the rendered services.



3) Construction contracts

Where the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, revenues and costs are recognized by
reference to the stage adrapletion of the contract activity at the end of the reporting period, measured based on the
proportion of contract costs incurred for work performed to date relative to the estimated total contract costs, except
where this would not be representativetw stage of completion. Variations in contract work, claims and incentive
payments are included to the extent that the amount can be measured reliivgraaceipt is considered probable.

Where the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimediably, contract revenue is recognized to the
extent it is probabléhat contract costs incurredll be recoverable. Contract costs are recognized as expenses in the
period in which they are incurred.

When the outcome of a construction contractlmestimated reliably, contract revenue and contract costs

associated with the construction contract shall be recognized as revenue and expenses by reference to the stage of
completion of the contract activity at the reporting date. When it is probablethiacontract costs will exceed total
contract revenue, the expected loss is recognized as an expense immediately.

Where contract costs incurred to daaieis recognized profif¢ess recognized losses exceed progress billings, the
surplus is shown ammounts due from customers for contract work. For contracts where progress billings exceed
contract costs incurred to dapdus recognized profifdess recognized losses, the surplus is shown as the amount
due to customers for contract work. Amounts ez before the related work is performed are included in the
consolidategstatemerg of financial position, as a liability, as advances received. Amounts billed for work performed
but not yet paid by the customare included in the consolidatethtemats of financial position under trade and

other receivables.

4) Dividend income and interest income

Dividend income from investments is recognized when t
established. Interest income is accrued on dyitmasis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected
l'ife of the financi al a sasamtontiniial tedognitionof t he assetds ne
5) Royalty revenue

Royalty revenue is recognized on an accrual basis in accordance with the substance of the relevant agreement.

6) Rental income

The Groupbds policy for recogninmarzedindNéte2r (86).enue from op:
(24) Current and deferred teg

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

1) Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differsr@fitragpreported in the

consolidated statemesdf comprehensiviencomebecause of items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never t a;
calculatedusing tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

2) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financiatatements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred

tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognized for all deductible temporary difaces to the extent it is probable that taxable profits will be available

against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognized if the temporary difference arises from goodwiliam the initial recognition (other than in a business



combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary diffeseassociated with investments in subsidiaries

and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in thedabde future. Deferred tax

assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such investments and interests are only
recognized to the extent it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which benefits of the
temporary differencesan be utilizedind they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
it is no longer probable that sufficieaixable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realized, basedax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group exaktite end of the reporting period, to

recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if, and onthéf Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current

tax assets againstizent tax liabilities, and the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable ewlitidsintend either to settle

current tax liabilities and adseon a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

3) Current and deferred tagfor theyear

Current and deferred tagare recognized in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the current and defersedgatso recognized in
other comprehesive income or directly in equityespectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the
initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.

(25) Treasury stock

When theGrouprepurchases its equity instruments (treasury stock), the incremental costs that increase in relation to
capital transactions, net of tax effect, are deducted from equity and recognized as other capital items deducted from
the total equity in the consolidatetatemerstof financial position. In addition, profits or losses from purchase, sale

or retirement of treasury stocks are directly recognized in equity and not in current profit or loss.

(26) Assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groupschassified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than thraagiinueduse. This condition is regarded as met only when
the sale is highly probable and the rmnrent asset (or disposgioup) is available for immediate sale in its present
condition.Management must comnid aplan to seltheassets anis expected to meet the requirements within one
yea® sme.

If the Group commis to aplan to sell assets to lose control of a glibsy, thenall theassets and liabilities dfiat
subsidiay are classified as held for saldenthe abovementioned conditions are met, regardless of whether the
Groupwill retain a norcontrolling interest in its former subsidiary after the sale.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving disposal of an investment, or a portion of an investment, in an
associate or joint venture, the investment or the portion of the investment that will be disposed of is classified as held
for sale when theriteria described above are met, and the Group discontinues the use of the equity method in

relation to the portion that is classifieslleeld for sale. Any retained portion of an investment in an associate or a

joint venture that has not been classifischald for sale continues to be accounted for using the equity method. The
Group discontinues the use of the equity method at the time of disposal when the disposal results in the Group losing
significant influence over the associate or joint venture.



After the disposal takes place, the Group accounts for any retained interest in the associate or joint venture in
accordance with KFRS 1039 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measuremeantess the retained interest
continues to be an associate oriatjgenture, in which case the Group uses the equity method

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their previous
carrying amount and fair valukess costs to sell.

(27) Fairvalue

Fair valueis the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuati@ehnique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at theasurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis, excepbé&seshpagment
transactions that are within the scope efFiRS 1102 ShareBasedPayment leasing transactions that are within the
scope of KIFRS 1017 easesand measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as net realizable value iAIRRS 1002]nventoriesor value in use in KFRS 1036 Impairment of Asets

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized irdd | 2vel3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the
fair valuemeasurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

— Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement.date

— Level 2 inputs are inputs, other tharoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly

— Level 3 inputs are unobservable inp for the asset or liability.

5. SIGNIFICANT CONSIDERATION AND MAJOR SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES

In applying the Group's accounting policies described in Note 2, management must make judgments that have a
significant effect on the amounts recognized indbiesolidatedinancial statements (except for those related to the
estimates) and are not délg identifiable from other sourced estimates and assumptions about the carrying

amounts of assets and liabilities. Estimates and related assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors considered relevant. Actual resuotiy differ fom these estimates

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. The amendments to the accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the amendment is made if such amendment affects only that period,
and in the perioéth which amendments are made and in the future periods if they affect both the current and future
periods.

(1) Critical judgments made during the application of accounting policies

The following items are significant judgments that are different fioyad related to the estimates (see Note 3 (2)),
which is the result of the management's application of the Group's accounting policies and is most important to the
amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statenieaffects things.

1) Deferredncome tax assets

Future feasibility for deferred tax assets depends on a number of factors, including our ability to generate taxable
income during the period in which the temporary difference is realized, the overall economic environment and
industry odlook. The Company reviews these items periodically and recognizes deferred tax assets for temporary
differences that it deems feasible as of the end of the reporting period.



(2) Main sources of estimated uncertainty

The principal sources of significhassumptions and other estimated uncertainties for the future, at the end of the
reporting period, which have significant risk factors that could cause significant adjustments to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the next financial yaaras follows.

1) Uncertainty in total contract revenue estimates

Total contract revenue is measured initially at the contracted amount, but can be increased or decreased as a result of
changes in the terms of the contract in the course of performirngiti@ct, sdhat themeasurement of contract

revenue is subject to various uncertainties related to the outcome of future events. The Group includes in the contract
revenue when it is more likely that the customer will approve the change in the amm@usgnofe due to changes in

the terms of the contract or if it is more likely than not that the performance criteria will be met antbthe can

be reliably measured

2) Estimated total contract cost

The amount of the construction revenues is affelgyetthe progress based on the cumulative incurred contract costs
and the total contract costs are estimated based on future expectatibnags material costs, labor costs, project
duration, etc. The Group estimates the significant chaargegviewed peodically and the changes are reflected in
the calculation of progress as of the end of the reporting period.

3) Impairmentinspection
The recoverable amount of the cagmerating unit to be reviewed for impairment is determined based on the value
in use or the fair valudess costs to sell and is estimated based on future estimates.

4) Definedbenefitretirementenefitsystem

The fair value of a financial instrument that is not traded in an active market is determined principally using
valuation techiques. The Group makes judgments on the selection of various valuation techniques and assumptions
based on important market conditions as of the end of the reporting.period

5) Fair value assessment of financial instruments

The fair value of a financiahstrument that is not traded in an active market is determined principally using

valuation techniques. The Group makes judgments on the selection of various valuation techniques and assumptions
based on important market conditions as of the end of tloetirggp period.






(*3) Changed name during this period.

(*4) Newly established during the year.

(*5) Merged BizTech Partners Co., Ltd. with BiTech Partners Co., Ltd. and changed its name to BerTieets

Co., Ltd.

(*6) LG Corp. merged with LG Corp., the parent company of the Company during the period.

(*7) The remaining portion was transferred to LG CNS JAPAN CO., LTD.

(*8) Sold during the current term.

(*9) As a result, the Company has beengfarred from the investment in associates to the subsidiary as a result of
the obligation to purchase sharasaccordance with the agreemesee Nte 30)

(*10) Amount of elimination of internal transactions and amount of equity method valuation.

(3) Asses for each business segment of the Group as of Decemi#1RBland 201,7are as follows
(Unit: Korean wonin millions):

Business sector December 31, 2@L December 31, 201
LG Corp. 9,327,64. 9,238,809.
S&I CorporationCo., Ltd. 4,912,63 4,505,87.
LG CNS Co., Ltd. 2,604,511 2,646,48
Others 675,16¢ 687,95¢
Subtotal 17,519,95 17,079,20
Consolidation adjustments (1 5,315,961 4,459,12.
Asses shown in the assets held for SaR) - 109,36¢
Total 22,835,91 21,647,69

(*1) Consolidation adjustments consist of elimination of intercompany transactions with regard to assets of each
segment and valuation of associated int ventures using the equity method.
(*2) Assets of the Lusem Co., Litkee Mte 39.

(4) Inventories sold and services rendered for each business segment of the Grouyefns émeledDecember 31,
2018 and 201,7are as follows (UnitKorean wonn millions):

Business sector InvenFories sold an Year ended Year ended

services rendered December 31, 2@L December 31, 201
LG Corp. Others 757,19 714,84
S&l CorporationCo., Ltd. Merchandise 4,356,71 4,156,24.
Service 887,78 853,16:
Construction 2,100,83 1,996,32
Others 33,07 23,20¢
LG CNS Co., Ltd. Service 1,233,38! 1,319,371
Construction 1,377,01 1,309,38¢
Merchandise 737,04 787,58t
Manufactured gooc 1,11¢ 24,05:
Others Service 86,85( 80,63:
Others 68,43¢ 70,31
Subtotal 11,639,45 11,335,12
Consolidation adjustments (*) 305,33: 505,93(
Total 11,944,79 11,841,05

(*) Consolidation adjustments consist of elimination of intercompany transactions with regard to assets of each
segment and valuation of associates and joint ventures using the equity method.



(5) Regional revenusef the Groupbefore elimination of intersegmemansactionand valuatiorby equity method
for theyeas endedDecember 312018 and 201,4s as follows(Unit: Korean wonin millions):

Business sector

December 31, 2@L

December 31, 201

Korea 9,482,48 9,568,06!
China 1,512,17 1,221,00:
Other Asia 339,30¢ 370,91
America 101,89: 88,87¢
Europe 203,59: 86,26¢
Total 11,639,45 11,335,12

(6) Regional norcurrent assets of the Group before elimination of intersegnaersactions and valuatidy
equity method for thgeas endedDecember 312018 and 201,7are as followgUnit: Korean wonin millions):

Business sector

December 31, 2018

December 31, 2017

Korea 11,550,85 10,696,42

China 26,85¢ 28,83¢

Other Asia 272,88: 233,63
America 195,96: 107,36¢
Europe 57t 1,541
Subtotal 12,047,13 11,067,81
Assets held for sal¢) - 38,95¢
Total 12,047,13 11,106,76

(*) Non-current assets of the Lusem Co., l(gke Mte 39.



7.CLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FAIR VALUE:

(1) The arrying amount and fair value of financial assets and liabilities as of Decemi26r18land 201,7are as

follows (Unit: Korean wonin millions):

1) Financial assets

December 31, 208

December 31, 201

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Financialassets Account amount value amount value
Cash and cash Cash and cash equivale 1,054,29: 1,054,29: 1,309,94 1,309,94
equivalents
Financial assets  Derivative assets for
measured at FVTP trading purposes 1,241 1,241 1,71t 1,71t
Unma_r_ketable equity 11,29( 11,29( i i
securities
Debt securities 5,11¢ 5,11¢ - -
Subtotal 17,64¢ 17,64¢ 1,71¢ 1,71¢
Derivative assets  Derivative assets
designated as designated as hedging - - 82 82
hedging instrument instruments
Financial assets Markgt.able equity 35 75¢ 35 75¢ 46,87 46,87
measured at securities
FVTOCI Unmarketable equity 65,05¢ 65,05¢ 74,94 74,94
securitieq*)
Debt securities - - - -
Subtotal 100,81: 100,81: 121,81 121,81
Financial Financialinstitution
assetsfabilities) depoits 348,69¢ 348,69¢ 438,21« 438,21«
measured at Trade receivables 2,780,98! 2,780,98! 3,049,03! 3,049,03
amortized cost Loans 11,14 11,14 10,36° 10,36°
Other accounts receivat 45,66 45,66 50,10¢ 50,10¢
Accrued income 3,551 3,551 3,27( 3,27(
Deposits 9,52( 9,52( 20,09( 20,09(
Subtotal 3,199,56! 3,199,56! 3,571,08! 3,571,08!
Total 4,372,32 4,372,32 5,004,64' 5,004,64'
2) Financial liabilities
December 312018 December 312017
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Financial liabilities Account amount value amount value
Financial liabilities Derivative liabilities fo
at FVTPL: trading purposes 181 181 1,86 1,86+
Derivative liabilities Derivative liabilities
designated as designated as hedging - - 11¢ 11¢€
hedging instrumeni instruments
Financial liabilities Trade payables 1,634,67! 1,634,67! 2,261,61 2,261,61
measurd at Borrowings 282,40¢ 282,40t 285,321 285,32¢
amortized cost: Other accounts payabl 110,91 110,91 140,29: 140,29:
Accrued expenses 175,90( 175,901 188,31: 188,31.
Accrued dividends 34z 342 32¢ 32¢
Deposits received 359,78 359,78: 409,73« 408,22:
Debentures 1,237,13 1,237,13 1,107,32 1,101,26!
Subtotal 3,801,14 3,801,14 4,392,94 4,385,37!
Total 3,801,33 3,801,33i 4,394,92 4,387,35:




8. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:

The cash and cash equivalents in the consolidateemers of cash flows are the same as the cash and cash
equivalents in the consolidatsthtemergof financialposition. Details of cash and cash equivalents as of
DecembeB1,2018 and 2017are as follows (Unitkorean wonin millions):

Description December 31, 2@&L December 31, 201
Cash on hand 3,151 506
Bank deposits 783,177 954,876
Other @sh equivalents 267,965 354,567
Subtotal 1,054,293 1,309,949
Assets held for sale - 32,922
Total 1,054,293 1,342,871

9. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES:

(1) Details of trade and other receivables before deducting accumulated impairmerddossBscember 32018
and 2017 are as follows (UnitKorean wonn millions):

December 312018

Receivables
neither Receivables
impaired nor overdue but nc Impaired Consolidated
Description overdue impaired receivables Total adjustment Conslidated
Trade receivabke 2,791,70¢ 204,87¢ 27,521 3,024,11! (208,917 2,815,19¢
Other receivables 507,07¢ 12,494 7,318 526,88¢ (451,696 75,192
Total 3,298,78! 217,37: 34,84¢ 3,551,00: (660,613 2,890,39(
December 312017
Receivables
neither Receivables
impaired nor overdue but nc Impaired Consolidated
Description overdue impaired receivables Total adjustment Consolidated
Trade receivabke 3,220,99: 160,49: 27,722 3,409,20¢ (333,680 3,075526
Other receivables 135,402 10,194 16,044 161,64( (64,139 97,501
Total 3,356,39: 170,687 43,76¢€ 3,570,84t (397,818 3,173,02

(2) Aging oftrade and other receivablgmat are overdue but not impairad of December 32018 and 2017are
as follows (Unit:Korean worin millions):

Description December 31, 208l December 31, 201
1i 29 days 78,38¢ 53,90¢
30i 60 days 21,28¢ 14,94¢
617 90 days 19,35¢ 10,76(
911 120 days 12,11¢ 15,991
More than 121 days 86,22( 75,08

Total 217,37 170,68

Since the experience of past credit losses of the Group shows significant loss of different customer segments,
the provisioning rate based on past delinquency days is divided into diffestornen groups

Meanwhile, the credit grant period is 60 to 120 days for each type of sales, and no interest is charged for

accounts receivable. The Group measures the allowance for losses on trade receivables at an amount equal to the
expected total ECLS.he ECLs on trade receivables are estimated using the default experience of the borrower

and the provisional setup table based on the borrower's experience of the default and the current state of the
borrower and are based on the specific factors ofdh@Wwer, and the general economic situation of the

industry to which the borrower belongs and forecast directidrere are no estimating techniques onsigant
assumptions during the current period



(Unit: Korean wonin millions):

December 31, 2@L

(3) Changes in accumulated impairment losses foy¢hes endedDecember 312018 and 201,7are as follows

December 31, 201

Description Trade receivables Otherreceivables Trade receivables Otherreceivables
Beginning balance 26,48¢ 13,66¢ 27,93¢ 14,401
Impairment loss 10,057 (141) 10,00C 900
Disposals of accounts

receivable (3,289 (19,16% (4,986) (1,228)
Reversal of allowance

for doubtful (2,199 (529 (473) (460)

accounts
Effect d foreign

currency translation (630 i (200) )
Others 5,562 11,481 (2,117) 72
Changes in the Groug (2,783) 2) - -
Assets held for sale - - (3,671) (17)
Ending balance 34,20¢ 5,31C 26,48¢ 13,66¢

(Unit: Korean worin millions):

(4) Aging of impairedtrade and other receivables as of Decembe2@18 and 201, 7areas follows

Description December 31, 2L December 31, 201
Less than 7 months 4,35¢ 1,06¢
71 12 months 65C 33¢
More than 1 year 29,84( 42,36t
Total 34,84¢ 43,76¢

10.INVENTORIES:

Details of nventories as of December 2018 and 201 7are as follows (Unitkorean worin millions):

December 312018
Description Acquisition cost Carrying amount Valuation allowanc
Merchandise 108,23¢ 106,321 (1,913
Finished goods - - -
Semifinished goods - - -
Work in progress 133 133 -
Raw materials 7,017 5,717 (1,300
Stored goods 322 322 -
Inventories in transit 3,65¢ 3,65¢ -
Other inventories 408 - (408
Total 119,76¢ 116,14¢ (3,621
December 312017

Description Acquisition cost Carrying amount Valuation allowanc
Merchandise 103,12¢ 100,51¢ (2,608
Finished goods - - -
Semifinished goods - - -
Work in progress 59 59 -
Raw materials 6,21C 5,24( (970)
Stored goods 222 222 -
Inventories in transit 3,82¢ 3,82¢ -
Other inventories 648 124 (524)
Total 114,09: 109,98¢ (4,102




11.OTHER ASSETS:

Details of other assets as@écembeB1,2018 and 2017are as followgUnit: Korean wonin millions):

December 312018 December 31, 201
Description Current Non-current Current Non-current
Advance ayments 47,532 3,110 50,932 2,728
Prepaid expenses 36,08¢ 6,308 28,03t 5,813
Prepaid VAT 13,165 - 5,944 -
Due from customers for 208,56/ ) 198,757 i
contract work
Others 44 - 1000 -
Total 305,391 9,419 284,66¢ 8,541

12.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT:

(1) Composition of the Groupds pr ope2018and2@,lisanfolonand e qui
(Unit: Korean worin millions):

December 312018
Toolsand  Furniture  Congruction Other Total
Description Land Buildings  Structures Machinery Vehicles equipment and fxtures in progress property
Acquisition cost 440,16¢ 1,223,55: 266,671 144,77z 26,13¢ 4,948 216,10¢ 36,72¢ 490,93t 2,850,012
Accumulated
depreciation - (323,849 (105,592 (83,370 (11,039 (3,539 (135,485 - (295,272 (958,137
Accumulated .
impairment ) ) . (12,085 - - - - (235 (12,320
Government .
subsidies - (1332 - - (245 ) (145 - 89) (1,809
Carrying - . 5
440,16¢ 898,371 161,07¢ 49,317 14,85 1,412 80,47¢ 36,726 195,34¢ 1,877,74¢
amounts
December 31, 201
Toolsand  Furniture  Constructior Other
Description Land Buildings Structures Machinery Vehicles equipment and fixtures in progress property Total
Acquisition cost 482,68: 957,86< 260,017 104,23¢ 23,08: 4,583 212,37¢ 260,127 490,344 2,795,31¢
A‘écum“'_""“?d - (281,991  (92,913)  (62,878) (10,061  (2,916) (141,952 - (289196] (881,907,
epreciation
Accumulated
impairment i . . - - - - - (482) (482)
Government
subsidies . (1,073) . - - - (152 - (160) (1,385)
Carrying - ,
482,68: 674,79¢ 167,104 41,361 13,02: 1,667 70,272 260,17 200,50€ 1,911,54(

amounts







(3) Changes in government grants for yleaus endedDecember 312018 and 201,7are as follows

(Unit: Korean wonin millions):

Year ended Deember 31, 208

Tools and Furniture Other
Description Buildings equipment Vehicles and fixtures property Total
Beginning balance 1,073 - - 152 160 1385
Receipt 391 2 273 75 - 741
Offsetting depreciation (82 (28) (60) (76) (246
Others (50 - (22) - (72
Ending balance 1,332 2 245 145 84 1,808
Year enled Decembe31, 2017
Tools and Furniture Other
Description Buildings equipment Vehicles and fixtures property Total
Beginning balance 1,137 120 317 1,574
Receipt - 86 14 100
Offsetting depreciation (56) (54) (171) (281)
Others (8) - - (8)
Ending balance 1,073 152 160 1,385
13.INVESTMENT PROPERTY:
(1) Composition of investment property as of Decembe818 and 201,7s as follows
(Unit: Korean wonin millions):
December 31, 2@L
Construction ir
Description Land Buildings Structures progress Total
Acquisition cost 767,752 603,89( 10,19¢ 181,41z 1,563,25:
Accumulated depreciation - (141,946 (4,399 - (146,34)
Carlying amounts 767,752 461,944 5,803 181,41z 1,416911
December 31, 2017
Construction ir
Description Land Buildings Structures progress Total
Acquisition cost 708,472 560,07( 9,246 84,01¢ 1,361,801
Accumulated depreciation - (116,384 (3,873) - (120,257
Carryingamounts 708,472 443,68¢ 5,373 84,01z 1,241,54¢




(2) Changes in investment property for gfeais endedDecember 312018 and 201, 7are as follows
(Unit: Korean wonin millions):

Year ended December 31, &1

Construction in

Description Land Buildings Structures progress Total
Beginning balance 708,47: 443,68¢ 5,373 84,01z 1,241,54«
Acquisitions - 1,383 590 91,147 93,12C
Depreciation - (22,283 (1,156 - (23,439
Transfers 48,231 37,527 935 - 86,692
Disposals (2,403 (41 - - (2,449
Others 13,452 1,672 61 6,252 21,437
Ending balance 767,752 461,944 5,803 181,412 1,416911

Year ended December 31, 2017
Construction in

Description Land Buildings Structures progress Total
Beginning balance 483,19( 374,05¢ 5,656 821 863,72¢
Acquisitions 234,771 67,901 - 100,23¢ 402,917
Depreciation - (19,767 (1,153) - (20,920
Transfers 15,01¢ 26,722 960 (12,044 30,65¢€
Disposals (6,348) (2,912) - - (9,260)
Others (18,165 (2,317) (90) (5,003) (25,575,
Ending balance 708,47: 443,68¢ 5,373 84,01z 1,241,54«




(3) Details ofthefair valueof investment property as of December 3018, are as follows
(Unit: Korean wonin millions):

December 312018
Buildings anc
Description Date of revaluatior Land structures Total
Book value of investment property:
Book value (1) 871,201 878,307 1,749,508
Results of valuation:

Pyeongtaek HUB Center (*1), (*2) 20170331 24,166 25,444 49,610
Twin Tower (*1), (*3) 201802-13 581,400 318,600 900,000
Gasandong building (*1) 201802-13 78,889 92,608 171,497
Gwanghwamun building (*1) 201802-13 216,070 93,930 310,000
Buho building (*1) 201802-13 18,174 14 18,188
Seoul Station building (*2) 201609-30 136,793 73,941 210,734
Incheon IT Center (*1)*4) 200901-01 15,391 9,169 24,560
Sangam DDMC (*1)(*4) 20141001 260,635
Kyobashi Trust Tower (*1), (*2) 20140401 169,382 79,710 249,092
North America building*2), (*5) 201706-29 65,638 128,598 194,236
Sangdodondi Plaza(*2), (*5) 201706-30 5,445 1,760 7,205
gggo"dong Gangnam buildin@?), 201712-31 167,077 71,918 238,995
Others (*2) 201602-26 755 - 755

Total 2,635,507

(*1) Includes the value of investment property (carrying value that is subject to valuat@32597 million)
occupied by the owner.

(*2) Acquisition cost is considered as fair value.

(*3) It is the whole valuation amount of Twin Tower.

(*4) It is the whole valuation amount bfcheon IT Center and Sangam DDMC. Sangam DDMC is an appraisal
value of the entire real estate, including land, buildings and structures. The amount of appraisal value allocated
to the holding area ratio of the consotithentity is 78,191 million.

(*5) Newly acquired during the previous period

Fair valueassessmentas performed by an independent third padagra Appraisal Co., LtdSamchang Appraisal
Co., Ltd.andDaeil Appraisal Board

The fair value of investment propeityclassified as Level 3 based on the input variables that are used in the
valuation method.

Thevaluationmethod formeasurement of fair value is the method of discounted cashsitothe fair value of
investment property is measured by the discountesient value that the net cash flow from the investment
property is discounted by the discount rate of risk adjustimergflecting the cost in relation to rental promotion
such as estimated success rate of rental market, vacant period, rental regatdfgreriod and other costs that the
lessee does not paylain input variables that are significant for measuring the fair yblutenot dservableare
estimated success rate of rental market, vacant rate, free rental period and discount ratdjo$ms&nt.

Meanwhilg the Group recognized rental incomefoi 28,111 million andd 109,916 million, respeistely, for
investment property






Year ended December 31, 2017

Intellectual Computer
Developmen  property Construction software and
Description costs rights Membership:  Goodwill in progress  other assets Total
Beginning balance 7,727 8,619 23,08¢ 2,185 10,42¢ 61,962 114,00¢
Acquisitions - 8 4,112 - 18,562 7,467 30,14¢
Disposals (181) (316) (2,898) (520) - (39) (3,954)
Transfers in 233 - 14 - 637 18,082 18,96¢€
Transfers out - - - - (18,966, - (18,966)
Government subsidies - - - - - (29) (29)
Impairment loss (198) (1,510) - - - (78) (1,786)
Amortization (*1) (5,568) (1,360) - - - (21,124 (28,052)
Trszrllzigr)s to assets held for ) (28) (618) ) 3) (1,547) (2,196)
Disposals of subsidiaries (*: (245) - (2,151) - (2,001) (10,800, (15,197)
Others 1 1,994 - - (166) 37 1,866
Effect of foreign curency
translation 9) - (6) - (127) (283) (425)
Ending balance 1,760 7,407 21,53¢ 1,665 8,365 53,65¢ 94,394
(*1) 2,997 million classified as profit or loss of discontinued operations is included.
(*2) Intangible assets of the Lusem Co., Ltce¢dNote 38
(*3) Disposed LG Siltron Inc., a subsidiary, durihg previous period (see Note)36
(3) Details of book value of goodwill that is allocated to egeherating unit are as follows
(Unit: Korean won in milbns):
Year ended December 31, 301
Description Acquisition cost Accumulated depreciatior Book value
Sejong Green Powét2) 779 (779) -
BizTechPartners Co., Ltd. 1,665 - 1,665
Eiolr)ea Elecom Co., Ltd 7,964 (7.964) i
Total 10,408 (8,743 1,665
Year ended December 31, 2017
Description Acquisition cost Accumulated depreciatior Book value
LG CNS Co., Ltd. - - -
BizTechPartners Co., Ltd. 1,665 - 1,665
golr)ea Elecom Co., Ltd. 7.964 (7,964) i
Total 9,629 (7,964) 1,665

(*1) Management recognized impairment loss for the whole goodwlileatal book value of cagienerating unit
exceeded the estimated recoverable amount and the exceeding amount is larger than the carrying value of
goodwill. There are no assets other than goodwill that the impairment loss will be allocated.

(*2) Transfered to the scope of consolidation durthg airrentperiodand the related goodwill was fully impaired.



(4)

®)

Changes in government grants for yleaus endedDecember 312018 and 201, 7are as follows

(Unit: Korean wonin millions):
Year ended Deesber 312013

Intellectual property  Computer software and oth

Description rights assets Total
Beginning balance - 12t 12t
Receipt - (55) (55)
Offsetting amortization - a7 a7
Ending balance - 53 53

Year endeddecember 31, 201
Intellectual property  Computer software and oth

Description rights assets Total
Beginning balance 9 274 28¢
Receipt - 19 19
Offsetting amortization 9) (168 @77
Ending balance - 12t 12t

The costselated to research and developmantounted for as expensés theyeais endedDecember 31,
2018 and 201,7are as follows (Unitkorean wonn millions):
Year ended Year ended
Description December 312018 December 31, 201(*)
Manufacturing stateent - 29,233
Selling and administrative expenses 33,731 24,133
Total 33,731 53,366

(*) The expenditures incurred from discontuinued operations36,604) of the previous period are included.






(*4) During thecurrentyear, the equity ratio decreased due to the increase in the number of shares.

(*5) Although the Company owns less than 20%$hares, the Company has significant influence over the contractual right to
appoint ondirector to the board of directors.

(*6) Established during the year and has committed to investing 30% before or after investing. The Company has significant
influence over théoard ofdirectors by the contractual right to appoint a director.

Fair valies of marketablequity securitiegor investments in associates as of December 31, 2017, are as follows
(Unit: Korean wonin millions):

LG Householc LG

& Health Care LG Electronics LG Uplus International GIIR LG Hausys.  Silicon Works
Description LG Chem Ltd. Ltd. Inc. Corp. Corp Corporation Ltd. Co., Ltd.
Fair values of 8,166,377 5,852,36¢ 3,432,39: 2,777,70C 146,92C 43,663 170,17¢ 180,78€

equity securities

(2) Changes in investments in associated joint venturefor theyeas endedDecember 312018 and 2017are as
follows (Korean worin millions):

Year ended December 31, 31
Gain from valuatior

Adjustmen recognized in
from Gain (loss)  accumulated other
Beginning  revised k Dividends from comprehensive Disposal and  Ending
Companies balance IFRS Acquisitions received valuation income others balance

LG Chem Ltd. 4,845,564 - - (141,209 454,25: (30,159 - 5,128,462
LG Household & -

Health Care Ltd. 943,955 (741) - (47,840 216,691 (4,599 - 1,107,467
LG Electronics Inc. 3,941,79¢ 1,079 - (22,039 365,464 (43,199 - 4,243,102
LG Uplus Corp. 1,853,94C 469,794 - (62,95) 166,397 3,559 - 2,430,73¢
L(él')':;ema“o”a' 296,741 1,089 - (2,393)  (19,404) 2,401 - 278,434
LG Hitachi Co., Ltd. 8,704 - - 3) 756 (792) - 8,665
GIIR Corporation 52,316 (582) - (1,450) 6,553 (359) - 56,478
LG Hausys, Ltd. 290,933 (78) - (5,412) (16,024) 772 - 270,191
LG MMA Corp. 254,010 - - (51,000) 86,691 (944) - 288,757
Silicon Works Co., 173578 (375) : (3769 12,703 (533 - 181,607
LG Fuel Cell

Systems Inc(*1) 24,096 - 4,529 - (11,962 193 (16,856) -
ZKW Holding

GmbH - - 404,713 8,495 (3,680) 409,528
Momment

Gewerbelmmobilie ) ) 15,289 60 38 15,87

n Verwaltungs

GmbH
Combustion

Synthesis Co., id. 1,562 - - - (303 1 718 1,978
Korea Smart Card 45,635 . . . 2,890 (739 . 47,787
Songdo ULife LLC 7,914 - - - (465 - (6,738) 711
Recaudo Bogota

SAS.(2) 2,575 - - - (1,378) (1,197 - -
Sejong Green &®wer ) ) ) ) ) ) ) )

Co., Ltd.(*3)
Hellas SmarTicket 2.920 ) ) ) 831 (13) ) 3738

Societe Anonyme
Ulleungdo Natural

Energy } } )

Independent Islan 6.371 (1748 6 1) 4,558

Co., Ltd.
Dongnam Solar

Energy Co., Ltd. 607 ) ) ) 32 ) ) 639
Daegu Clean Energ 10 ) ) ) 5 ) (15) )

Co., Ltd.
KEPCOLG CNS
Mangilao Holdings - - - - - - - -
LLC(*4)
Total 12,753,22¢ 470,186 424,531 (338,058  1,270,53¢ (79,233 (22,969  14,478,22¢




(*1) Recognized the total amountiofpairmensg during the period.

(*2) Due to the cumulative loss during the year, the application of the equity methdise@sinued and the equity method loss
of A 230 million was not recognized.

(*3) As a result of the acquisition of control,

(*4) Accumulated equity method lossesff658 million and accumulated other comprehensive incorde @7 million were
recognizedn shortterm loans.

Year ended December 31, 2017
Gain from valuation
recognized in
Gain (loss) accumulated other

Beginning Dividends from comprehensive  Disposal and Ending
Companies balance Acquisitions received valuation income others balance
LG Chem Ltd.(*1) 4,142,19€ 343,185  (111,097) 592,949 (45,267) (76,402) 4,845,564
LG Household &

Health Care Ltd. 754,566 - (39,866) 190,772 38,483 - 943,955
LG Electronics Inc. 3,5687,29¢ - (22,038) 503,196 (126,658) - 3,941,79¢
LG Uplus Corp. 1,705,684 - (55,082) 198,888 4,450 - 1,853,94(
LG International

Corp. (2) - 296,741 - - - - 296,741
LG Life Science Co.,

Ltd. (1) - - - - 84,696 (84,696) -
LG Hitachi Co., Ltd. 8,564 - (@) 4 143 - 8,704
GIIR Corporation 48,004 - (1,450) 5,493 269 - 52,316
LG Hausys, Ltd. 275,070 - (5,412) 21,763 (488) - 290,933
LG MMA Corp. 216,441 - (21,000) 58,400 169 - 254,010
s|||_|tcdon Works Co., 167,035 - (4,842) 11,676 (291) - 173,578
L(fnfue' Cell System 7,542 21,920 ; (9,679) (110) 4,423 24,096
Combustion Synthes

Co., Ltd, 1,210 537 - (171) (14) - 1,562
Korea Smart Card

Co., Ltd. 42,110 - - 4,055 (530) - 45,635
Songdo ULife LLC 7,915 - - (2) - - 7,914
Rgczugo Bogota 4,000 - - 1,227 (1,726) (926) 2,575
Sejong Green Powel ) ) ) )

Co., Ltd. 1,165 (922) (243)

Hellas SmarTicket

Societe Anonyme 2,749 - - 146 25 - 2,920
Ulleungdo Natural

Energy Independel 6,895 - - (525) 1 - 6,371

Island Co., Ltd.

Dongnam Solar

Energy Co., Ltd. 588 ) . 20 1) ) 607
Daegu Clean Energy ) ) ) )

Co., Ltd. 125 (115) 10
Serveone Cenyar

Services Co. (*3) ) ) . ) 32 (32) )
KEPCGOLG CNS

Mangilao Holdings - - - - - - -

LLC (*4)

Total 10,979,15¢ 662,383 (260,794) 1,577,17¢ (46,817) (157,876) 12,753,22¢

(*1) Merged with LG Life Sciace Co., Ltd. during the previopgriod. The Group recognized 182,086 million gains on

disposals of investments in associates.

(*2) The Group acquired its shares in LG International Co., Ltd. at the end of November 2017 and is in the process of allocating
acquisition prices for the transfer price.

(*3) Liquidatedduring the current period. The Group recognize®2 million loss on dispo$siof investments in associates.

(*4) Equity method losses of 83 million and other comprehensive income of4 million were recognized adlowance for

shortterm loans






(4) Summary of financial positiofor associatsas of December 32018 and 201,4s as follows
(Unit: Korean wonin millions):

December 312018
Equity
attributable tc
the ownerso  Non-
Current Non-current Total Current Non-current Total the parent controlling

Companies assets assets assets liabilities liabilities liabilities company interests Total equity
tg Ci*h)em 12,08851 1685562 2894413 7,273,53. 4,348,47' 11,622,000 17,083,04 239,08 17,322,12
LG
Household & = 651 50: 358467 527587 1,358,88; 322,970 1,681,85  351206( 8195  3,594,02
Health Care
Ltd.
LG
Electionics 19,362,85.  24,965,58 44,328,44. 17,135,02 10,886,50 28,021,53' 14,253,26! 2,053,63' 16,306,90
Inc. (*)
LG Uplus 2472 9,692,70/  13,939,94 383296 325361 7,08658  6,85323: 3 685336
Corp. 4,247,24. , ,70! 13, ,94 , , 253,61 7, 5 ,853,23: 1 ,853,36!

(*)LG Chem Ltd. and L&lectronics Inc. eactecorded 2,764million and

assets (liabilities) held for sades of December 32018

115,21 2million, respectively, of

December 31, 2017
Equity
attributable t
the ownersa  Non-
Current Non-current Total Current Non-current Totd the parent controlling
Companies assets assets assets liabilities liabilities liabilities company interests Total equity

tg (Eb)em 11,205,58 13,835,64 25,041,22 6,638,68¢ 2,063,95! 8,702,64: 16,168,52 170,05: 16,338,57
LG
Household & . . .
Health Care 1,513,341 3,264,62 4,777,971 1,244,05 451,29¢  1,695,35. 2,997,06! 85,54¢ 3,082,61
Ltd.
LG
Electronics 19,194,96! 22,025,98 41,220,95: 17,536,47 9,010,80! 26,547,27. 13,224,26. 1,449,42. 14,673,68
Inc. (*)
LG Uplus 3,072,98! 8,862,46! 11,935,45 3,664,55: 3,037,91! 6,702,46 5,232,87I 11E 5,232,98!
Corp. T e v T

(*) LG Chem Ltd. and LG Electronics Inc. each recorde®,595 million ( 31 million) and 21,436 million,
respectively, of assets (liabilities) held for sa¢eof December 31, 2017.

(5) Summary ofprofit and losdor associatefor the yeas ended December 32018 and 201,4s as follows
(Unit: Korean wonin millions):

Year ended December 3018

Accumulated

Profit (loss) from other Total
Operating incom  Income tax discontinued comprehensive comprehensive
Companies Revenue (loss) expense operations afterta income(loss) income(loss)
LG Chem Ltd. 28,183,01: 2,246,07(C 420,73E - (86,477 1,432,83E
éﬁg‘i‘tﬁeho'd & Health 6,747,531 1,039,25( 263,726 : 203 692,482
LG Electronics Inc. 61,341,66¢ 2,703,291 535,76C - (140,567, 1,332,247
LG Uplus Corp. 12,125,057 730,94F 166,65¢ - 14,993 496,603
Year ended December 31, 2017
Accumulated
Profit (loss) from other Total
Operating incom  Income tax discontinued comprehensive comprehensive
Companies Revenue (loss) expense operations afterta  income (loss) income (loss)
LG Chem Ltd. 25698014 2,928,451 541,922 - (146,077, 1,875,89¢
éﬁrsci‘t’jer‘c"d & Health 6,270,46¢ 930,351 242 85¢ - (16,054) 602,495
LG Electronics Inc 61,396,284 2,468,54¢ 688,594 - (435,822) 1,433,69¢
LG Uplus Corp. 12,279,38: 826,29t 119,702 - 12,349 559,467




16.DEBENTURES AND BORROWINGS:

1) The
(Unit: Korean worin millions):

December 31,

Gr o uterd korravings ast of December 2018 and 201, 7consist of the following

December 31,

Description Creditor Annual interest rate (% 2018 2017
Korean currency shoterm Kookmin Bank 319392 20,521 20,900
borrowings and others
Overdraft Kookmin Bank 359362 7,303 7,191
Foreign currency shoeterm The Export
b gn y Import Bank of 0.748.00 45,132 30,995
orrowings
Korea and other
Total 72,956 59,086
(2) The Gr o uendmrrolings gs of December 2018and 2017 consist 6the following

(Unit: Korean worin millions):
Annual interes

December 312018

December 31, 201

Description Creditor rate (%) Current Non-current*1) Current Non-current
Korean
currency long .
term shinhan Bant 5 761 6.40 51,65: 85,28¢ 80,85 108,67
borrowings
(*1)
Foreign
oY ong  smec 0.67-3.47 - 74,07( - 37,96
borrowings
Debentures i Public offering 4 o5 g 110,00( 1,130,001 240,00( 870,00(
Korean won bonds
Discount on debentuse (129 (2,749 (126 (2,545
Present value discount account - (1,559 - (1,246
Total 161,52t 1,285,05! 320,72t 1,012,84!

(*1) Information on norcurrent longterm barowings as of December 31, 2Q18as folows

(Unit: Korean won in millions):

Remaining maturity 1year?2 years

2 years3 years

More than 3 years

Balance 1,652

51,65:

106,05:



@) The

(Unit: Korean worin millions):

Gr denmréssas af Becember 2018 and 201, 7consist of the following

Annual
Company Description Issuance date  Maturity date  interest rate December 31, 2@L December 31, 201
L?_tg.’\'s €O 7npublic offering 20130507 20180507 2.96% - 100,00
9-1%t public offering 201504-16 201804-16 1.88% - 50,00(
9-2"9 public offering 201504-16 202004-16 2.07% 100,00t 100,00t
9-3"9 public offering 201504-16 202204-16 2.44% 50,00( 50,00(
10-1%t public offering 201704-11 202004-11 2.10% 110,00t 110,00t
10-2" public offering 201704-11 202204-11 2.45% 40,00( 40,00(
11-15*public offering 201804-11 202004-11 2.55% 90,00( -
11-2" public offering 201804-11 202304-11 2.83% 110,00( -
2-2" public offering*1)  201505-29 202005-29 2.8 20,00( -
S&l - 50,00(
Corporation  4-1% public offering 20151001 20181001 1.96%
Co., Ltd.
(*2) 4-2" public offering*2) 20151001 202610-01 2.24% - 150,00t
5-15tpublic offering 201610-27 201910-27 1.92% 110,00( 110,00(
5-2 public offering 201610-27 2021:10-27 2.10% 90,00( 90,00(
6-1% public offering 201711-01 2020-11-01 2.64% 70,00( 70,00(
6-2" public offering 201711-01 202211-01 2.99% 130,00( 130,00(
7-1% public offering 20180504 2021-05-04 2.62% 70,00( -
7-2" public offering 201805-04 202305-04 2.98% 100,00(¢ -
Sirt‘ée‘(’,[‘ze) €0 4.0 public offering*2)  201510-01 20201001 2.28% 150,001 -
L?_t'a'?}f) €O pastpublic offering 20150529 201805-29 2.32% - 40,00(
2-2" public offering 20150529 202005-29 2.89% - 20,00(
Subtotal 1,240,00( 1,110,001
Discount on debentures (2,869 (2,671
Currentdebentures (*B (109,875 (239,874
Total 1,127,25 867,45!

(*1) The merger was merged into LG CNS Co., Ltd. during the current te2ffipRblic offering debentures issued

by LG Engineering Co., Ltd. wereammsferred from LG CNS Co., Ltd

(*2) Serveone Co., Ltd. changed its name to S & | Co., Ltd. and divided MRO division into new@&e\@o., Ltd.
(*3) This is the amount deducted from the discount on bonds.



17. PROVISIONS:

Changes in provisions for tlyeas endedDecember 312018 and @17, are as follows
(Unit: Korean wonin millions):

Year ended December 31, 31

Effect of
Effect of foreign Effect of
Beginning accounting currency disposal of Ending
Description balance  policy change Increase Using Reversal translation  subsidiaries balance
Provision for
construction \
(product) 19,890 - 11,256 (11,772) (1,720 49 - 17,703
warranties
Restoration
liabilities (*) 6,784 - 993 (3,699 (6098 2 - 3,477
Others 40,48C 2,077 18,067 (20,480 (3,887 18 - 36,27¢
Total 67,154 2,077 30,316 (35,949 (6,215 69 - 57,455
Year ended December 31, 201
Effect of foreign Effect of
Beginning currency Assets held disposal of Ending
Description balance Increase Using Reversal translation for sale subsidiaries balance
Provision for
construction \
(product) 17,641 19,194 (10,931; (977) (75) (1,309) (3,653) 19,89C
warranties
Restoration
liabilities (*) 6,826 1,121 (591) (560) (12) - - 6,784
Others 36,76C 19,674 (14,385, (1,498) (71) - - 40,48C
Total 61,227 39,989 (25,907, (3,035) (158) (1,309) (3,653) 67,154

(*) The increase due to the valuation of the present value is included.

18. RETIREME NT BENEFIT PLAN:

(1) Defined contribution plan

The Group operates a defined contribution plan for its employees. Obligation of the Group is to make payments to
third-party funds, and the benefits for employees are determined by the payments madentdstaad the
investment earnings from the funds. Plan asset is managed by the third party and is segregated from the Group's

assets. Contributions to defined contribution plan during the current @eribithe previous pericate
million and  29,734million, respectivelyand payable amounts related to defined contribution plans as of

December 312018 and 201,7are  5,331million and 3,434million, respectively.

(2) Defined benefit plan

33,575

The Group operates a defined bfgn@an for its employees, and according to the plan, employees will be paid his or
her average salary of the final three months multiplied by the number of years vested, adjusted for payment rate and
other. The actuarial valuation of plan assets andefieed benefit liabiliesis performed by a reputable actuary
using the projected unit credit method.



1) As of December 312018 and 201, 7amounts recognized in the consolidateatemerg of financial position
related to retirement benefit obligatiare as followgUnit: Korean wonn millions):

Description December 312018 December 31, 201
Present value afefined benefit obligation 192,693 209,355
Fair value ofplanassets (182,29) (196,658)
Net defined benefit liabilities 10,402 12,697

2) Changes in defined benefit obligation for tleais endedDecember 312018 and 201 7are as follows

(Unit: Korean wonin millions):

Year ended Year endedecember
Description December 312018 31, 207

Beginning balance 209,355 319,853
Currentservicecost 25,643 38,815
Interest cost 5,362 7,138
Actuarial gain (loss) 10,489 (23,422)
Past service cost (313) 919
Gain(loss)rom reduction/sttlement (15,105) -
Effect of foreign currency translation (5) (15)
Benefits paid (42,325 (31,215)
Others (408 (1,477)
Classified as liabilities held for sale - (1,878)
Changes in the Group - (99,363)
Ending balance 192,693 209,355

3) Income and loss related to defined benefit plan foyédzes endedDecember 312018 and 201,7

are as follows (UnitKorean worin millions):

Year ended Year ended

Description December 312018 December 31, 201

Service cost 25,330 39,734
Currentservicecost 25,643 38,815
Past service cost (313) 919
Effect of settlement/curtailments - -
Ngt m_terest on the net defined benefit 298 1,308

liability (asset)

Interest cosbn defined benefit obligatior 5,362 7,138
Comprising interest on plan assets (5,069 (5,830)
Others 587 430
Total 26,215 41,472

Total costs for thgeas endedDecember 312018 and 201, 7are included in cost of sales  8,238million and

11,274million, respectivelyjn selling and administrative expendes

17,977million and  20,693million,

respective}, in profit from discontinued operations for 9,505 millionduring the previous period.



4) Changes in plan assets for ffeais endedDecember 312018 and 201 7are as follows
(Unit: Korean wonin millions):

Year ended Year ended
Description December 312018 December 31, 201
Beginning balance 196,658 262,998
Comprising interest on plan assets 5,064 5,830
Remeasurementsreturn onplanassets (1,752 ,777)
Contributionsfrom the employer 18,189 29,117
Contributionsfrom the enployee 12,200 1,500
Effect of foreign currency translation - (1)
Benefits paid (33,5109 (29,139)
Others (14,558) 4,340
Classified as liabilities held for sale - (625)
Changes in the Group - (75,585)
Ending balance 182,291 196,658

5) All of the plan assets are invested in financial instruments that guarantee principal and inteassifrate
December 312018 and 2017

6) Actuarial assumptions used as of DecembefB18 and 2017are as follows:

December 31, December 31,
Description 2018 2017
Discount rate (%) 2.277.05 2.606.71
Expected rate of salary increg86) 2.709.79 3.5119.79

7) The sensitivity analysis of the defined benefit obligation as of Decemb2038 and 201,4s as follows (Unit:
Korean won in millons):

December 312018
Description Center scenario +1% -1%
Change in discount rate 192,693 180,562 206,147
Change in rate of salary increas 192,693 205,762 180,657

(*) The above sensitivity is estimated based on the assomipiat all the other respective assumptions remain
unchanged.

December 31, 201

Description Center scenario + 1% -1%
Change in discount rate 209,355 199,109 224,691
Change in rate of salary increas 209,355 224,372 199,154

(*) The above sensitivity is estimated based on the assumption that all the other respective assumptions remain
unchanged.



8) Remeasurement related to net defined benefit lissfibr theyeais endedDecember 312018 and 201,4s as
follows (Unit Korean won in millions):

Year ended Year ended
Description December 312018 December 31, 201
Actuarial gains (losses) arising from. (110) 447
changes in demographic assumptions
Actuarial gains (Ioss_es) arising from 6.899 (26,829)
changes in financial assumptions
Actuana_l gains (losses) arising from 3.667 3.038
experience
Re_turn on p_Ian assem_;cludmg amounts 1,752 1,777
included in interest income
Actuarial gains (losses) arising from
; . 33 (78)
transfer in/out adjustments
Total 12,241 (21,645

Meanwhile, the Group deducted (3,040 million and  (4,820)million arising from income tax effect for
actuarial gain (loss) during the curremdpreviousperiods, respectively

19.OTHER LIABILITIES:

Other liabilities as of December 3018 and 201,7are as followgUnit: Korean wonin millions):

December 312018 December 31, 201
Description Current Non-current Current Non-current

Advance receipts 65,40: - 78,49: -
Advances from lease revenue - 5,21¢ - 5,551
VAT withheld 68,54 - 63,88’ -
Withholdings 73,55’ - 54,12: -
Unearned income 4,08¢ 23,92° 6,59¢ 17,45
Contract _Ilab|I|ty(formerly.Overchargec 150,04 ) 107,74! )
construction)
Other longterm employee benefits - 10,99¢ - 10,15¢

Total 361,63: 40,14: 310,84( 33,16

20. CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS:

(1) Construction ontracts as of December 31, 2018 and 201 asfellows.(Unit: Korean wonin millions):

Description DecembeBl, 2018 December 31, 201
Construction ontracts 215,376 204,253
Deductions: Allowance for losses (6,812) (5,496)
Total 208,564 198,757

Management estimates the alkmce for doubtful receivables in accordance with the Practical Uncertainty Law of
K-IFRS 1109 as thECL for the whole period. As of the end of the current period, there are no overdue bonds.

No estimated changes in estimates or assumpgi@used in asessing the allowance for contract assets in
construction contracts during the year.



(2) Changes iECLsof contractual assets during the year are as follows (Unit: Korean won in millions):

Description DecembeB], 2018
Beginning balance 5,496
Increase(decrease) of allowance for loss 1,316
Ending balance 6,812

As of December 31, 2008, the Company has no overdue receivables. Based on past default experience and
future prospects for the clients' businesses,agament believes that there are no impaired contracts.

(3) Constructioniability as d December 31, 2018 and 2017w follows. (Unit: Korean won in millions):

Description December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
Construction type contract 150,04z 107,74¢

No significant change in the contractual liability balance during the reporting period.

(4) Revenue recognized in current operations in respect of the contractual obligations carried forward is as follows,
and there is no revenue recognized in threent year in relation to the obligation to fulfill the contract.

Description December2018
S&l Corporation Co., Ltd 78,264
LG CNS Co., Ltd 39,420
Consolidation adjustments (9,939)
Ending balance 107,745

(5) As of January 1, 2018, the first application date 6FRS 1115, changes in estimates of total contractual costs
and contractual costs relating to traicts recognized in profit or loss over the period by applying thebesstd
input method, The effect of changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments on profit and loss,
contract assets and liabilities in the current and future pesadsfollows(Unit: Korean won in millions):

Change in Changes in Effect on Changes in
estimated estimated total current profit Effect on future contractual asse
Description contract amoun!  contract costs or loss profit or loss (liabilities)
gi" E?épora“on 317,06¢ 295,36¢ 16,34¢ 5,349 16,349
LG CNS Co., Ltd 32,51¢ 35,34¢€ (10,236, 7,408 (10,236,
Consolidation
. 3 1,029 970 56 95
adjustments (970) (56) (959
Total 349,584 331,74C 5,143 12,701 5,162

Changes in these estimates are excluded from contracts outstanding at the beginning of the period and include
contracts that are in process and ended in prior periods.

(6) None ofthecontracts that recognize progrdsssed revame made by applying the cdsased input method
during current perioéxceeded 5% of previous sales.



21.1SSUED CAPITAL:

Details of issued capital as of DecemberZ118 are as follows (UnitKorean wonn millions):

Number of
Number of Number of issue sharewned Par value Amount of
Type of stock  authorizedshares shares by related part  (in Korean won issuedcapital
Common stock 700,000,00¢ 172,557,13: 80,329,246 5,000 862,78¢
Preferred stock (* - 3,314,67: - 5,000 16,573

(*) Preferred stocks are stocks without voting rights that are eligible for an additional 1%, based on the face value of
the stock compared to common stocklen receiving cash dividends case of no dividend payout, they are
granted voting rights from the date of sharehol derséo
of sharehol der g&olvetdephyidvidendwhen it i s

The Grouphas 93,789 shares of common stock and 6,810 shares of preferred stock as of Dec&tb8radit]
2017, respectivelythe carryingamounts of common stocks are2,334 million (preferred stock: 51 million).

22.CAPITAL SURPLUS:

(1) Composition of capital surplus as of December2RIL8 and 201,4s as follows (Unit:Korean wonn

millions):
Description December 312018 December 31, 201
Asset revaluation reserve 338,10( 338,10(
Paidup capital in excess of par value 898,26¢ 898,26¢
Other capital surplus 1,129,17¢ 1,129,18:
Total 2,365,546 2,365,54¢

(2) Changes in capital surplus as of Decengie 2018 and 201,7are as followgUnit: Korean wonn

millions):
Description 2018 2017
Beginning balance 2,365,54¢ 2,364,93"

Changes in the share of subsidiaries 4 (102)
Acquisition (disposal) in the share of subsidia - 714

Ending balance 2,365,54! 2,365,54¢




23. ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME:

(1) Details of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) as of Decemb@i8hnd 201,7are as follows
(Unit; Korean wonin millions):

Description December 312018 December 31, 201

Description (312,899 (259,160)
Changes in investment valuation using equity met 35,844 41,925
Gain on valuation of othdinancial assets (2,069 (565)
Loss onvaluationof otherfinancial assets (13,239 (30,663)
Overseas operations translation 59 (1,907)
Lossonvaluation ofderivatives instruments entere:
: (127) -
into for cash flow hedge

Total (292,418 (250,370)

(2) Changes in investment valuation using equity metbotheyeais endedDecember 312018 and 201,7are as
follows (Unit; Korean worin millions):

Year ended Year ended
Description December 312018 December 31, 201

Beginning balance (259,160 (180,415)
Effect of changén accounting policy of affiliated

compares (5.477) )
Changes in capital of associates and joint ventur (36,541 (81,787)
Effect on income taxes (11,720) 3,042
Ending balance (312,898) (259,160)

(3) Changes imainvaluationon otherfinancial assetfor theyeas endedDecember 312018 and 201,7are as
follows (Unit; Korean worin millions):

Year ended Year ended
Description December 312018 December 31, 201

Beginning balance 41,925 21,106
Effect of changén accounting policy (839) -
Changes imain on valuatiorof otherfinancial (6,915) 27 465
assets

Effect on income taxes 1,673 (6,646)
Ending balance 35,844 41,925

(4) Changes iosson valuatiorof otherfinancial assetfor the years ended December 3018 and 201,7are as
follows (Unit: Korean won in millions):

Year ended Year ended
Description December 312018 December 31, 201
Beginning balance (569 (426)
Effect of change imccounting policy (957) -
Changes in losgaluationon otherfinancial assets (1,580 (183)
Effect on income taxes 1,038 44

Ending balance (2,069 (565)
















































































































